
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Council 
 

Monday, 18 November 2013 
6.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Municipal Offices 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Wendy Flynn (Chair), Simon Wheeler (Vice-Chair), Andrew Chard, 

Garth Barnes, Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Chris Coleman, 
Barbara Driver, Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Rob Garnham, 
Les Godwin, Colin Hay, Penny Hall, Tim Harman, Rowena Hay, 
Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, 
Andrew Lansley, Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, 
Paul McLain, David Prince, John Rawson, Anne Regan, Rob Reid, 
Chris Ryder, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett, 
Charles Stewart, Klara Sudbury, Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, 
Andrew Wall, Roger Whyborn and Suzanne Williams 

 
Agenda 

    
1.  APOLOGIES  
   
2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
3.  RECORDING OF THE MEETING 

To consider under Council procedure rule 16.1 a request from Mr A 
Lilywhite to record the meeting 

 

   
4.  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

7 October 2013 
(Pages 
1 - 16) 

   
5.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR  
   
6.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
   
7.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

These must be received no later than 12 noon on Tuesday 12 
November and must relate to the business for which this meeting was 
convened 
 

 

   
8.  MEMBER QUESTIONS 

These must be received no later than 12 noon on Tuesday 12 
November and must relate to the business for which this meeting was 

 



    

 
2 
 

convened 
   
9.  PETITION RECEIVED ON THE CHELTENHAM TRANSPORT PLAN 

A debate on a petition received on 23 August 2013 (deferred from 7 
October meeting) 

(Pages 
17 - 22) 

   
10.  CHELTENHAM TRANSPORT PLAN-CONSULTATION REPORT 

Report of the Cabinet Member Built Environment 
(Pages 
23 - 50) 

   
11.  NOTICES OF MOTION  
   

12.  TO RECEIVE PETITIONS  
   

13.  ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND 
WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 

 
   

14.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 -EXEMPT INFORMATION 
The Council is recommended to approve the following 
resolution:- 
 

“That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government Act 
1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining 
agenda items as it is likely that, in view of the nature of the business 
to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, if members of the 
public are present there will be disclosed to them exempt information 
as defined in paragraphs 3 and 5, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local 
Government Act 1972, namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
 

 

   
15.  EXEMPT MINUTES 

Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2013 
(Pages 
51 - 60) 

   
 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

Andrew North 
Chief Executive 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

Council 
 

Monday, 7th October, 2013 
2.30  - 4.43 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Wendy Flynn (Chair), Colin Hay, Andrew Chard, Garth Barnes, 
Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Chris Coleman, Barbara Driver, 
Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Rob Garnham, Les Godwin, 
Penny Hall, Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, 
Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, 
Paul McLain, John Rawson, Anne Regan, Rob Reid, 
Chris Ryder, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, Klara Sudbury, 
Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, Simon Wheeler (Vice-Chair), 
Roger Whyborn and Suzanne Williams 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
Apologies had been received from Councillors Harman, Hibbert, Holliday, 
Lansley, Stennett, Stewart and Wall. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Councillors C Hay, Driver, Smith and Williams declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest in Agenda item 13 as CBH Board members. 
 
Councillor Massey declared a personal interest in agenda item 14 as a member 
of the CESG Listed Advisor Scheme’ 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2013 were approved and 
signed as a correct record.  
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR 
The Mayor informed members that she had attended the opening of the 
refurbished gym at Leisure@. She then informed Members that she had 
attended the launch of the new Art Gallery and Museum “The Wilson” and paid 
tribute to the hard work of Jane Lilystone, the Museum and Arts Manager and 
Councillor Rowena Hay, Cabinet Member Sport and Culture. This was now a 
very impressive art gallery and museum and something which Cheltenham 
should be proud of. The Wilson had received 1600 visitors on Saturday with 500 
coming through its doors on both Sunday and Monday. The Heritage Lottery 
Fund had thanked the Council for its excellent bid and its spectacular building. 
The Chair of the Arts Council for England had also been very impressed with 
the Wilson. This was positive news for the town. 
 
Later in the Council proceedings the Mayor asked Councillors to stand for a 
moments silence in memory of Honorary Alderman Les Freeman who had 
recently passed away. 

Agenda Item 4
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

The Leader of the Council reiterated the thanks already expressed to those who 
had contributed to “The Wilson” which was a great asset to the town. 
 
Members were informed that the Leisure and Culture Trust was now looking for 
11 trustees, 2 of which would be members of council. A no obligation drop-in 
session would take place on 16 October for those interested to obtain further 
information. 
 
The Leader paid tribute to the excellent floral displays in the town this year. 
 
Reference was made to the LGA’s “Rewiring Public Services” document and 
members were informed that the LGA would be hosting a seminar on this on 12 
November in Taunton. He would be sending the invitation to the event to group 
leaders. He believed an all party approach to this was essential as it concerned 
local government’s response to central government with regard to the local 
government finance settlement.  
 
The Leader also referred to a recent erroneous article in the Echo stating that 
the Police would be having a presence in the Municipal Offices on the 
Promenade. The council had received an apology from the Police & Crime 
Commissioner as this was not the case. The Council was keen to work with the 
police on accommodation but consideration would need to be given with 
regards to timing and location issues. 
 
The Leader reported that the council had received an unqualified opinion for the 
Statement of Accounts and the Audit Committee had complimented the GO 
partnership for the work it had done on its behalf. 
 

6. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
None received. 
 

7. MEMBER QUESTIONS 
1. Question from Councillor Jacky Fletcher to the Leader of the 

Council, Councillor Steve Jordan 
 In an article to do with Council IT, Councillor Simon Wheeler was quoted 

recently in the Echo as saying, "But some of the more elderly councillors 
may struggle with the new technology.  There will be one or two members 
who won't be able to get their head around it. They struggle with modern 
technology," In my view this is insulting to senior councillors who have 
served this council for many years and do try and understand IT.  Does 
the Leader agree with Councillor Wheeler's offensive remarks and will he 
apologise on his behalf? 
 

 Response from Councillor Jordan  
 I would caution Cllr Fletcher against believing everything she reads in the 

press, but assume she feels the comments quoted in the article refer to 
her. If any other councillors feel the comments apply to them please let 
me know and I’m sure Cllr Wheeler will be happy to discuss it with them.     
 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

In a supplementary question Cllr Fletcher asked whether the Deputy 
Mayor would retract his remarks and asked why it had not been rebutted 
in the press if it was not factually correct. 
 
In response the Leader of the Council said it was not necessarily factually 
inaccurate but suggested that the Councillor concerned spoke directly to 
the Deputy Mayor. 

2. Question from Councillor Rob Garnham to Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services, Councillor Jon Walklett  

 We have recently had two IT failures caused by equipment in the Server 
Room switching itself off at night due to overheating when the air 
conditioning failed.  The system was subsequently not available until staff 
came into work the following morning.  I understand that there is no 
overnight or out of hours technical service available.  Could the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Services explain why he has allowed this Council 
to get into such a state that there is no IT out of hours support available? 
 

 Response from Cabinet Member  
 To my knowledge, the council has never had formal out of hours cover for 

ICT. However, staff have responded to issues out of hours when 
problems have been identified and contact has been made with one of 
the ICT team. The need for a more formal out of hours cover was 
identified by both staff and officers recently, partially as a result of the 
increasing number of system failures resulting from the lack of investment 
in ICT over very many years and this is now being addressed.  
 
The terms and conditions for staff employed by Cheltenham Borough 
Council were such that finding a workable solution which recompensed 
staff appropriately would have had significant cost implications across the 
council as a result of single status. The use of a private contractor would 
also add cost for a very limited service.  
 
However, now that staff have transferred to the Forest of Dean District 
council and the shared service is undergoing a restructure, we have an 
opportunity to address this issue without significant cost. In addition, FOD 
use software which will be applied to upgraded infrastructure at 
Cheltenham which alerts staff if systems and infrastructure fail. This is 
about to be applied to the new citrix infrastructure. 
 
In a supplementary question Cllr Garnham asked when councillors could 
expect a fully compliant, robust IT system in place. 
 
In response the Cabinet Member Corporate Services said there were no 
specific dates but explained that when Council had approved the Forest 
of Dean and CBC shared service in February 2013 it had also agreed to a 
2-3 year infrastructure investment project. It was acknowledged that there 
had been some hiccups and hurdles to overcome during the initial 
implementation period. Staffing remained an issue as did the heavy 
workload for IT management. The ICT service desk responses were good 
and improving. The infrastructure issues affecting the delivery of Citrix 
were now a priority in conjunction with the roll out of wifi and ipads. He 
reiterated his offer to make a regular statement at Council on progress. 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

3. Question from Councillor Barbara Driver to Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services, Councillor Jon Walklett 

 Can the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services please tell me what has 
happened to the scrutiny task group set up to look into Town Centre 
Deprivation.   
  
It had to be explained to one Cabinet member at the first meeting this is 
an O&S working group not a Cabinet Member working group.   
Then the last meeting was hijacked by another Cabinet Member who 
asked to be there as an observer. 
 

 Response from Councillor Walklett 
 I personally am unaware of any problems or issues connected with the 

Town Centre Deprivation scrutiny task force and I would suggest to 
Councillor Driver that she should initially inform her colleague Cllr Duncan 
Smith in his role as Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny of any such 
connected concerns. 
 
I have been present at all meetings held by this particular task group as 
an observer and have been very pleased to note that CBC officers 
summoned to meetings have been well prepared with relevant data 
covering the geographical areas covered by the Town Centre remit. I 
believe officers comprehensive knowledge of the part of St Paul’s ward 
included is largely due to that wards local councillors efforts in 
campaigning for increased monitoring of multi occupancy housing. 
Certainly my observer status allows me to voice an opinion when sought 
by members and / or officers at the meetings and I believe the published 
minutes of the Town Centre Deprivation task force reflect that fact. 
 
In a supplementary question Councillor Driver asked why the correct map 
featuring St Pauls was only passed to officers at the end of the meeting 
and why the Cabinet Member had held two meetings prior to the task 
group meeting. 
In response the Cabinet Member Corporate Services explained that the 
correct map did appear at the end of the meeting but he had held no 
discussions prior to this meeting with the planning department. He 
maintained observer status at this meeting and had not added to the 
agenda in any way. He suggested that Councillor Driver take up this 
issue directly with the officers concerned. 

  
4. Question from Councillor Chard to Cabinet Member Sustainability, 

Councillor Roger Whyborn 
 Can the Cabinet Member for Sustainability tell this Council how much 

progress he has made regarding each of the 7 recommendations agreed 
by Ubico Scrutiny Task Group that reported back to Scrutiny in March of 
this year and to Cabinet in April this year?   

 Response from Councillor Whyborn 
 1. Review decision not to nominate any borough councillors to the [Ubico] 

Board...  
 
This matter remains under review.  
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

2. Review the customer service arrangements at an appropriate time … 
and consider whether delivery of this service should return to the depot.  
 
A comprehensive review of customer service arrangements has taken 
place, including bad weather arrangements.  A systems thinking review 
has been undertaken looking at the processes within both CBC and 
Ubico and this is expected to yield improvements.  However no 
advantage can be demonstrated from moving the call centre back into 
Ubico at the depot. 
 
3. Review internal and external communication strategies…... 
 
The review referred to above includes communications.  Ubico have also 
looked at the way in which they communicate with their own teams. 
 
4. Review the emptying frequency timetable for the bring site facilities…..  
 
So far only minor changes have been identified as necessary, pending 
other work streams which are now complete. I can report on this subject 
in more detail if required. 
 
5. Consider the adoption of waste and recycling literature (bin tags) which 
include information including collection dates, bin information and key 
messages ….. 
 
This was reviewed but it was considered that this was a not a cost 
effective means of getting messages to the public.  Instead there will be 
more targeted communications for those who are not recycling. 
 
6. At the end of the season (April 2013) assess the overall impact of the 
decision by the senior football league to cease coordination of their sports 
pitch bookings and if this has had a largely negative impact on resources 
within the customer services team ask the senior football league to 
reconsider their decision……  
 
The problem which had been highlighted during the review has now been 
addressed and the processes for pitch bookings has been improved. 
 
7. Consider providing additional marketing resource on an invest to save 
basis for the promotion of the trade waste service……..  
 
An evaluation has been completed, with a recommendation based on 
modest growth to the service, with appropriate marketing investment. 
This was brought to the Cabinet member working group on Waste on 28th 
Sept. and will be further evaluated by cabinet. 
 
In a supplementary question Councillor Chard asked whether the Cabinet 
Member intended to publish the review and whether all members would 
receive it. In response the Cabinet Member said that some of the work 
was ongoing but a report could be produced. 

5. Question from Councillor Chard to the Leader, Councillor Steve 
Jordan 

 Can the Leader of the Council please reassure me that members of his 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

group do not discuss as a group planning applications prior to meetings 
of the Planning Committee and, like the Conservative members of that 
committee, that there is no 'agreed' line on any applications of any nature 
at Planning Committee. 
 
 

 Response from Councillor Steve Jordan  
 Yes I can. 
6. Question from Councillor Ryder  to Cabinet Member Corporate 

Services Councillor Jon Walklett 
 As a councillor it is important that not only do we serve the public 

but we can be seen to be serving the public.  Previously when I 
was here as a councillor, residents could see the questions and 
comments I was making on their behalf, as my name would be 
mentioned in the minutes of Council and the various committees I 
served on.  Now that I have returned, I note that is no longer 
happening, especially during debates and the time at Council set 
aside for questions. 
Can I ask the Cabinet Member if they will review the current 
practice of minute taking so that, as happens with Planning 
Committee, all councillors are named in the minutes. 
 

 Response from Councillor Walklett   
 Currently I believe the minutes to be in accordance with best practice, in 

that the purpose of the minutes is to provide context for the decisions that 
are taken and which enable the reader to understand the discussion 
which was related to that decision. 
The published  guidance on this matter confirms:-   

a) to establish an accurate record of the decisions taken; 
b) to comply with legal requirements; and where minutes are used 
as the vehicle to bring committee proposals before the full 
assembly, the need also: 
c1) to ensure that the record is sufficiently self-explanatory to 
enable the council to make a decision in full possession of the 
relevant facts;  
c2) to provide adequate information about the authority’s business 
for press and public.” 
The same guidance Law & Practice of Local Authority Meetings 
by Raymond Knowles also suggests that the “minutes should 
record the tenor of the discussion on a particular item of business 
but not attribute views to individual members.” Instead it is 
suggested to use words like “the following points were raised in 
discussion” and then list them. 

In a supplementary question Councillor Ryder asked whether OneLegal 
could look into this further and she looked forward to a valid reply in due 
course. 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

In response the Cabinet Member Corporate Services clarified that there 
had been legal input into the written answer. He suggested that the way 
Planning Committee was minuted was very different to Cabinet and 
Council. He would however ask OneLegal to provide a fuller explanation 
to his response. 

7. Question from Councillor Regan to the Leader Councillor Steve 
Jordan 

 What is this administration doing now to prevent 795 homes being 
built on Greenbelt land on the Up Hatherley Way" ?  
  

 Response from Cabinet Member  
 We are encouraging everyone to take part in the planned consultation of 

the proposals in the Joint Core Strategy starting on 15th October. The site 
mentioned by Cllr Regan is currently included as a potential development 
site in order to meet the assessed need for housing across the JCS area. 
We will ensure that the method of calculating the assessed need is 
reviewed to make it is as accurate as possible and that the data used is 
kept up to date. By the final version of the JCS we will work to ensure that 
the housing numbers allocated for Cheltenham match the need rather 
than exceed it as in the current version. 
 
In a supplementary question Councillor Regan asked whether the Leader 
had held any meetings with Tewkesbury Borough Council since the last 
Council meeting in order to remove the proposed development on 
Greenbelt Land on Up Hatherley Way. 
 
In response the Leader of the Council clarified that he was not aware of 
any meetings taking place. He clarified that it was only when the 
consultation had finished that changes would be made to the proposals, 
not at this point. 

8. Question from Councillor Seacome to the Leader, Councillor Steve 
Jordan 

 Recently we have had meetings of Overview and Scrutiny cancelled.  
Earlier this year there was a proposal to cancel a full Council meeting, 
and it was only held after the Conservative Group demanded its 
reinstatement.  The agenda for the meeting today has now had a major 
item removed which leaves us with nothing to discuss but one 
confidential item.   How can the Leader of the Council be confident that 
the citizens of Cheltenham, who pay for this council, are being properly 
served, given the complete lack of accountability and transparency that is 
a reflection of the way his Party is trying to run the Council, and by 
extension, the town? 
 

 Response from Councillor Jordan  
 Councillor Seacome should talk to Councillor Smith if he is concerned 

about scheduling of Overview & Scrutiny meetings, as it not something I 
have any control over. However, my understanding is that the 3rd October 
Overview & Scrutiny meeting was only scheduled if required and turned 
out not to be.  
 
Since there was a special council meeting to discuss the JCS last month 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

and another special council meeting to discuss the Cheltenham Transport 
Plan next month, Cllr Seacome’s claim that there is a lack of items to 
discuss would appear ludicrous. 
 
The Conservative group is of course free to use the ‘Notice of Motion’ 
item on the council agenda to discuss any issue they feel necessary. It is 
instructive to note that they have not put forward a single motion in the 
last year. 
 
In a supplementary question Councillor Seacome made reference to the 
fact that there were only 2 items on the agenda of this meeting and asked 
whether other decisions were being taken behind closed doors. 
 
In response the Leader of the Council said he failed to understand what 
Councillor Seacome was referring to and suggested that if he had issues 
then these should be raised as a notice of motion at Council. 

 
 

8. PETITION RECEIVED ON THE CHELTENHAM TRANSPORT PLAN 
Members noted that the discussion on the petition regarding the Cheltenham 
Transport Plan had been postponed to the special meeting of Council to be held 
on Monday 18 November at the request of the petitioners. 
 

9. NOTICES OF MOTION 
None received. 
 

10. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS 
None received. 
 

11. ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND WHICH 
REQUIRES A DECISION 
The Mayor informed Members that she had agreed to take an item as urgent 
business as it was deemed to be sufficiently significant to the Authority’s 
operations so as to justify its consideration as an urgent item of business at the 
meeting. This would be discussed in exempt session as Agenda Item 14. 
 

12. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 -EXEMPT INFORMATION 
RESOLVED 

 

“That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government Act 1972 the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the remaining agenda items as it is likely that, in view of 
the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, if 
members of the public are present there will be disclosed to them exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local Government Act 1972, 
namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings 
 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
- 9 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

 
13. ST PAUL'S PHASE TWO 

Having declared personal and prejudicial interests in this item Councillors 
Driver, C Hay, Smith and Williams left the room and did not participate in the 
debate. 
 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the report and explained 
that this constituted the last strand of work in the St Paul’s regeneration project. 
Prior to the construction phase commencing, this report concerned funding 
allocations and approval required, including loan arrangements.  
 
In terms of overall project loan finance, CBC would apply for this via the Public 
Works Loan Board and then advance these funds with the appropriate 
agreements in place to CBH. Repayment of this finance would be met from the 
net rental income over the longer term. 
 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety referred to concerns previously 
expressed by Members relating to the risk of losing the HCA grant. He reported 
that this risk remained until the project was complete. This was due to the fact 
that there was a different mechanism for paying the grant. He reassured 
Members that all possible factors that could result in delays had been identified 
and were being monitored via robust project management. 
 
The Cabinet Member paid tribute to the hard work being undertaken by CBH 
officers on this project and made reference to the award CBH had received at a 
national housing awards ceremony. He also highlighted the fact that CBH had 
obtained finance of nearly £4 million in a very difficult financial climate. 
 
In response to a question the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety clarified that 
the term of the loan period was 40 years. 
 
A member paid tribute to the work CBH had done in levering in funding and 
suggested that CBH be involved in the JCS policy to raise more affordable 
housing in the town. In response the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
explained that CBH was currently looking at its whole strategy to add to its 
housing stock. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 

1. The use of £100,000 from usable capital receipts arising from HRA 
asset disposals that the Council has previously resolved to apply 
to the provision of affordable housing be approved. This subsidy is 
to be used to support the affordable housing build element of the 
St Paul’s Phase two development 

2. The Authority sourcing loan finance of up to £2.3m from the Public 
Works Loan Board be approved and that the sums be advanced to 
CBH to be used for the construction of the affordable housing 
units to be comprised within the St Paul’s phase two development. 
And that a payment guarantee be authorised to the contractor in 
respect of the building contract. 

3. A loan agreement be entered into with CBH to a maximum of 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
- 10 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

£2.3m, repayable from the net rental stream from the affordable 
housing properties 

4. The use of an additional £50,000 be approved from usable capital 
receipts arising from HRA asset disposals that the Council has 
previously resolved to apply to the provision of affordable housing 
for the site assembly, thus increasing the associated budget from 
£450,000 to £500,000 

5. Authority be delegated to the Director of Resources in consultation 
with the Borough Solicitor to agree the terms of the loan 
agreement between the Council and CBH and financial contractual 
agreements between the Council, CBH and the contractor. 

 
 
 

14. ICT NETWORK ISSUE 
The Mayor confirmed to Members that she was of the opinion that the ICT 
network issue relating to the council’s PSN submission was sufficiently 
significant to the authority’s operations so as to justify its consideration as an 
urgent item of business at the meeting. It was agreed that Members could 
speak more than once in the debate. 
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the report and updated 
Members on the current position regarding PSN compliance. He explained that 
an extensive note had been separately issued which alerted public sector 
organisations to resourcing issues in the Cabinet Office. This note referred to 
300+ organisations which needed extensive support to achieve compliance and 
that there was no immediate risk to suspension of PSN where there was 
genuine appetite and realistic plans to achieve compliance. 
  
The Cabinet Member then highlighted the following: 
 
• Access to the PSN allowed emails to be received and transmitted via the 
Government Connect Secure Extranet (GCSX). It was a requirement of 
the government that access should only be allowed if users completed 
an annual compliance assessment   

• The PSN rules required users to be compliant with a range of standards 
and criteria, when they are, they can use the GCSX to send and receive 
emails within an encrypted framework. 

• The authority had been using GCSX as a method to transfer restricted 
data electronically since April 2009 and completed two previous 
assessments without issue. 

• ICT Shared Service had been working on the current compliance 
submission and associated infrastructure work since April of this year 
with the compliance team for the Cabinet Office. Despite this, the 
Cabinet Office still issued formal warning letters to remind councils of 
deadlines. 

• The management of the PSN compliance process and evidential 
requirements have changed substantially since last year which meant 
that the council had to provide significantly more evidence that the same 
ICT infrastructure, which had previously complied, still complied. 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
- 11 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

• The goalposts were moving on a continual basis with new guidance 
being provided on unmanaged end point devices as late as August 2013 
which ICT responded to by amending its processes and guidance to 
remote workers connecting in to the council. 

• He explained that this had therefore been a challenging process and 
had highlighted some key concerns for both officers and members and 
that there was a need to ensure that there was earlier engagement with 
the compliance team to address issues well ahead of the deadlines. He 
was confident that the new ICT shared service would ensure this 
happened. 

• The Cabinet Member noted that that this had been a particularly 
challenging year for the ICT team and the more complex and stringent 
process had been adhered to despite dealing with a significant number 
of other pressures including the creation of the ICT shared service, a 
virus, the failure of some key infrastructure and systems due to age and 
lack of investment. In addition the team had created reciprocal disaster 
recovery arrangements in the Forest of Dean and had supported some 
major projects including significant ICT input into the newly opened Art 
Gallery and Museum as well as commencing the infrastructure upgrade 
which would deliver a stable citrix environment, wifi for councillors and 
support for the ipad trials. This had been achieved despite losing some 
key personnel within the team. 

• The Cabinet Member acknowledged that the authority had not kept up to 
speed in its investment in ICT infrastructure and the service over very 
many years but reminded members that in February 2013 Council 
allocated £1.3 million to improve this. 

 
The Cabinet Member referred Members to the recommendations in the report 
and proposed a further recommendation: 
 
“That Council notes the significant effort made by the ICT team in dealing with 
the compliance process and refers to the Scrutiny ICT members working group 
a request to follow up this issue and make any future recommendations to 
Cabinet in relation to the future compliance process”. 
 
The Mayor invited Members to ask questions on the issue and the following 
points were raised : 
 
• Comments were made on the amount of technical jargon contained in 
the report.  

• In response to a question as to what contingency was in place should 
GCSX be disconnected and what effect this would have on those 
receiving benefits, the Cabinet Member Corporate Services stated that 
from the outset a contingency plan had been put in place and this was 
confirmed by the Director Resources as being with Forest of Dean 
Council. Following the submission at the end of August a conversation 
had taken place at senior management level on how the ICT Team 
would work with the Cabinet Office’s technical compliance team. 

• When asked whether a conversation had taken place with the Leader or 
the Chief Executive of the Forest of Dean to run CBC systems which 
were non compliant, the Director Resources stated that discussions had 
taken place about using the FoD infrastructure. 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
- 12 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

• The Cabinet Member Corporate Services believed that he had a 
sufficient understanding of the technical detail in the report. Members 
questioned why the matter was being dealt with in exempt session. The 
Chief Executive responded that it was not appropriate to discuss any live 
issues of IT security in open session. It was confirmed by the Cabinet 
Member Corporate Services that once formal confirmation had been 
received there was no reason why the debate could not be made public. 
The Head of Legal Services informed Members that Council could pass 
a resolution to go into open session but in his view there appeared to be 
a reasonable basis to continue to debate the issue in closed session at 
this stage. Having heard this, the Mayor decided to continue in exempt 
session. 

• A technical explanation was also requested on how routing through the 
FoD infrastructure could solve the issue and this was addressed by the 
ICT Manager. When asked whether FoD had gone through the same 
process with the Cabinet Office the Cabinet Member confirmed that the  
timing of their submission was ahead of CBC. In response to a question 
on why CBC had not shared information and understanding with the 
FoD about this process for common input, the Cabinet Member 
explained that the FoD submission had been different to CBCs and 
since then the goalposts had changed in terms of the detailed 
information required. 

• A member made reference to the recommendation that the ICT scrutiny 
working group had made when examining the virus issue regarding the 
need for a second firewall and the Head of ICT Shared Services 
addressed this point. 

• A member asked why there was no up to date risk assessment with the 
report and in response the Corporate Governance Officer explained that 
3 risks had been identified and how these had been managed. 

• When asked at what point members would have been made aware of 
the issue had Cllr Garnham not requested it to come to Council as an 
urgent item, the Cabinet Member Corporate Services explained that 
immediately on receipt of the Cabinet Office letter the Chief Executive 
had arranged for a report to be prepared for Audit Committee. 

• In response to a question as to what mechanism would be in place 
should standards change again to avoid the recurrence of this situation 
the Head of ICT Shared Services explained that there was a code of 
connections and the strategy was to start to prepare six months in 
advance and with the engagement of external consultants.  

• A member queried why, in the context of the risk assessment, the 
impact was only scored as a 3 since the risk to the reputation of the 
council could be severe. In her view the actions proposed did nothing to 
mitigate against the damage to the councils reputation. The Corporate 
Governance Officer confirmed that a risk assessment had been made 
on the Thursday prior to this meeting and as the final submission had 
met the standards the risk was assessed as lower. Some members 
believed that the risk should be reassessed as the very fact that the 
council could have to transfer operations to the FoD would be a high 
impact in terms of reputation, customers and benefits payments. The 
Cabinet Member confirmed that the risk factor accurately reflected the 
most up to date situation. 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
- 13 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

• When asked whether those in receipt of benefits would be unaffected 
the next day, the Cabinet Member Corporate Services explained that 
benefits would be paid as normal. 

• A member asked when exactly matters had been brought to the 
attention of the Cabinet and when they had been discussed. In response 
the Cabinet Member Corporate Services confirmed that Cabinet had 
been informed on 19 September at an informal meeting but in advance 
of which the Leader had been informed via the Chair of Audit 
Committee. 

  
There being no further questions the Mayor moved to the debate. 
 
In response to some of the questions that had been raised by members, the 
Leader of the Council stated that he felt that it was appropriate for the report to 
be an exempt item and that the debate should not be held in public.  Although 
he was confident that the systems were now compliant, formal clarification had 
yet to be received from the Cabinet Office. He was confident that the ICT 
shared service was doing all that it could to resolve the matter. 
 
A member stated their concern that it appeared that no one was taking 
responsibility for the matter and that others were being blamed for the situation.  
They wanted to know how the council had arrived at a situation where services 
were threatened and wanted to understand what solutions were being 
proposed.   
 
There was a brief discussion as to whether during debates on exempt items, 
mobile phones and mobile devices should be switched off, but it was 
recognised that some members may require them to be switched on for 
emergency contact or to access their council papers.   
 
Members expressed their concerns that if access to the network had been 
compromised then it would have been the most vulnerable people in society 
who would have felt the impacts.  There was a suggestion that the Cabinet 
Office should be questioned as to whether they had fully thought through the 
consequences of disconnection.  It was noted that the Cabinet had raised the 
issue of the impacts on vulnerable people when the matter had been brought to 
the meeting of the informal cabinet. The Chief Executive indicated that he would 
be writing to the Cabinet Office and would raise members concerns.   
 
Members also raised concern that this was yet another ICT issue and that the 
service was not robust.  They noted that other councils do not seem to have 
similar issues with their ICT.   
 
Councillor Garnham, leader of the conservative group, stated that having read 
the report and listened to the answers to members’ questions, he believed that 
his request to ask for the urgent item had been the right one.   This was a 
serious matter and he wanted reassurances from the Cabinet as to what they 
were doing to address the matter.  Given that the council had been advised 
earlier in the year as to the potential risk of disconnection he wanted to know 
what the Cabinet had done about the issue and how they had worked with 
officers to resolve the matter.  He questioned whether members would ever 
have been told about the matter had he not requested the item be brought to 
council.  It was the first time in all of his service as a councillor that he had ever 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
- 14 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

requested an urgent agenda item.  He recognised that there had been a lack of 
investment in the ICT service and infrastructure but in his opinion the blame lay 
with the administration. 
 
In response a member reminded the council, that the administration had 
earmarked £1.3m ICT investment at the last budget, and that the disinvestment 
in ICT had started in a conservative administration.  He did acknowledge that 
there were problems with the ICT system particularly citrix.  He also 
acknowledged that it was important that the council was prepared to deal with 
the PSN submission in future years so that a similar situation did not arise.  It 
was inevitable with the growth of cyber crime that the security restrictions would 
increase and the council needed to be fully prepared.  However he felt that the 
process was restrictive and that the Cabinet Office needed to provide a 
proportionate response so that the council is not classed as dealing with the 
same type of secure information which is held by national security agencies. 
 
A couple of members indicated that they felt that the debate had been useful 
but felt that the comments made by the leader of the opposition were unhelpful 
in securing an appropriate debate and response to this serious matter. 
 
The way in which the risk assessment accompanying the report had been 
scored, was a concern for several members who felt that the impact score was 
insufficient given the reputation risks and the risks that any service interruption 
would impact on vulnerable individuals.  It was also pointed out that ICT 
currently provides services for other partner organisations and therefore there 
could also have been an impact on their operations and this was not mentioned 
in the report.  There was a general consensus amongst those members who 
spoke on the issue of the risk assessment that there may be a requirement to 
revisit the risk process and ensure that council officers are reminded about the 
scoring mechanism and have a good understanding about the differences 
between impact and a likelihood score.  It was recognised that the risk register 
was an important tool for both the executive and overview and scrutiny 
committee and members need confidence in the risk management process. 
 
Members also commented that the overview and scrutiny committee had set up 
a task group looking at ICT and they had made a number of recommendations 
relating to security following the virus earlier in the year.  They would be 
disappointed if these recommendations had not been taken on board and 
actioned.  It was also noted that there had been an internal audit report setting 
out security risks and one member questioned whether the Cabinet Member 
Corporate Services had been proactive in ensuring that the matter was dealt 
with appropriately, and whether the cabinet had made sufficient effort to 
prioritise this work.  They went on to say that it was inappropriate to cast blame 
at the Cabinet Office. 
 
Concern was raised again about the item being taken as an exempt item 
particularly as the Echo was aware of the matter.  There was a call for when the 
matter will be made public, given that there was nothing within the debate which 
warranted such an exemption. The Chief Executive advised members that the 
Echo had contacted him and therefore he had to respond.   
 
In summing up the Cabinet Member Corporate Services said that he had 
listened to the debate with interest.  He acknowledged that this was a serious 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
- 15 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 November 2013. 
 

matter, which warranted debate.  He advised members that as soon as the 
letter from the Cabinet Office was received that a report was prepared for the 
Audit Committee, and that ICT had worked hard to prepare a resubmission 
which could demonstrate that the council was compliant.  He reminded 
members that he had offered in the past to brief council on a regular basis 
about ICT if they so wish, and restated that he was happy to do this to future 
meetings if so wished by members.  He reminded members of the proposed 
addition to the recommendations: 
 
� That Council notes the significant effort made by the ICT team in dealing 
with the compliance process and refers to the ICT Scrutiny task group a 
request to follow up this issue and make any future recommendations to 
Cabinet in relation to the future compliance process 

 
Councillor Garnham proposed an additional amendment 
 
� That all Councillors be sent a copy of the final confirmation email with 
regards to compliance along with advice as to when the matter can be 
made public. 

 
This additional recommendation was approved by members. 
 
On moving to the vote it was  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 

1. the communication from the Cabinet Office regarding PSN 
compliance authorisation, the Chief Executive’s response, the 
actions taken by the authority and the up to date position be noted 
  

2. the significant effort made by the ICT team be noted and that the 
matter is referred to the ICT Scrutiny task group for further 
consideration and for them to make any recommendations to 
cabinet on compliance issues. 

 
3. Councillors be sent a copy of the final confirmation email with 

regards to compliance along with advice as to when the matter can 
be made public. 

 
Voting : For : 27, Against : 1; Abstentions:1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wendy Flynn 
Chair 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank
Page 16



   

$r1lelqh4.doc Page 1 of 5 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 18 November, 2013 

Cheltenham Transport Plan – Petition  
 

Accountable member Councillor Andrew McKinlay – Cabinet Member for Built Environment 
Accountable officer Mike Redman – Director Built Environment 
Ward(s) affected All 
Significant Decision Yes 
Executive summary  

This report:- 
� has been prepared in response to the receipt of a petition which has 

triggered a Council debate because it includes more than 750 
signatories; 

� was postponed from the last meeting of Council (7th October, 2013) 
at the request of the petitioners, so that both the petition and the 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Cheltenham Transport Plan 
Consultation report could be considered at the same meeting; 

� needs to be read in the context of the next item which is the formal 
consultation report from GCC in respect of the Cheltenham 
Transport Plan. 

 
Recommendation 

 
That Council, having considered the petition in accordance with the 
procedure set out in Appendix 1, resolves to note the concerns of 
certain sections of the public and consider them within the context of 
the Cheltenham Transport Plan Consultation Report. 

  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 17



   

$r1lelqh4.doc Page 2 of 5 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

Financial implications None arising specifically from this report. 
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, Director of Resources, 
mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Legal implications The petition falls to be considered under the Authority’s Petition Scheme. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis (OneLegal), 
peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no direct HR implications arising from the content of this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, GO Shared Service Human 
Resources Manager (West), julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264355 

Key risks See risk assessment attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

None arising specifically from this report. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None arising specifically from this report. 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

None arising specifically from this report. 
Contact officer:   David Roberts, Head of Property & Asset 
Management, david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264151 

1. Content of petition received 
1.1 The Council has received a petition under the heading ‘NO to Cheltenham Transport Plan and 

Boots Corner partial closure’. 
1.2 The petition (a copy of which has been made available in the Members’ room) includes 217 e-

mail names and 910 signatures. As such, it contains more than the 750 signatories required to 
trigger a Cheltenham Council debate, but is below the threshold of 5,000 signatories required 
for a debate by GCC.  

1.3 There is some duplication between names appearing on both signature and e-mail lists, as 
verified by postal address and postcodes. 

1.4 The e-mail list pre-dates the formal consultation process by nearly 3 months, with names 
appearing from April 2013. 

1.5 The statement within the petition states:- 
‘We the undersigned DO NOT SUPPORT the Cheltenham Transport Plan. We urge both 
Gloucestershire County Council and Cheltenham Borough Council not to proceed with the 
proposals as laid out in the consultation running between July 1st and September 1st 2013. 
We are particularly concerned with the proposed partial closure of Boots Corner. Reducing the 
number of vehicles will only offer a small improvement in the public realm quality at Boots 
Corner but the associated increase in displaced traffic which will have a severe impact on 

Page 18



   

$r1lelqh4.doc Page 3 of 5 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

residential roads, for example College Road, St Luke’s Road, old bath road, St George’s 
Street, Hewlett Road, All Saints Road and Gloucester Road. 
We urge the County Council not to implement the partial closure of Boots Corner as part of the 
Cheltenham Transport plan. WE condemn this proposal (and) ask that each signature in 
this petition is counted as a NO vote in the consultation.’ 

2. Background to receipt of the petition 
2.1 Please refer to the Gloucestershire County Council document ‘Cheltenham Transport Plan 

Consultation Report’ which sets out the comprehensive background relating to the consultation 
process which has triggered this petition. A CBC paper prepared for the meeting of 7th October 
2013 when this item was originally to be considered is an appendix within the GCC 
Consultation Report. This CBC 7th October 2013 report was postponed and not formally 
considered by Councillors at the request of the petition organisers. 

2.2 This appendix A of the GCC Consultation Report sets out the nature and approach to the 
formal consultation exercise which was led by GCC on behalf of CBC and with support from 
the Cheltenham Development Task Force. 

2.3 It should also be noted that GCC has employed Opinion Research Services Ltd (ORS), an 
independent social research organisation to assist with the coding of written comments and the 
analysis of the results. ORS is a Market Research Society Company and is fully compliant with 
the MRS Code of Conduct. ORS is also a member of the Consultation Institute and its 
research activities and systems are fully accredited to BS ISO 9001:2008 and BS ISO 20252. 
 

Report author Contact officer:  Mike Redman, Director Built Environment, 
mike.redman@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264160 

Page 19



   

$r1lelqh4.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

Appendix 1 
Process for dealing with petitions at Council  
The following is the recommended process to be followed for the debate of a petition at the Council 
meeting in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme. The Council Procedure Rules shall be 
suspended in so far as necessary to facilitate this process. 
1. The Mayor will remind members of the procedure to be followed 
2. Statement by the petition organiser  
The Mayor will invite the petitioner organiser or their representative to come to the microphone and 
speak for up to 5 minutes on the petition.  
There will be no questions and the petition organiser/their representative will take no further part in 
the proceedings.  
3. Clarification on the background information in the officer’s report 
Members will be invited to ask any questions for clarification as to the facts in the officer’s report. 
4. Statement by the relevant Cabinet Member 
The Cabinet Member whose portfolio is most relevant to the petition will be invited by the Mayor to 
speak for a maximum of 5 minutes on the subject of the petition. They may wish to refer to the 
background report from officers circulated with the papers for the meeting.   
They may also wish to propose a motion at this point; if so, the motion must be seconded. 
5. Debate by members 
Where a member has proposed a motion (which is seconded), the usual Rules of Debate (Rule 13) 
will apply. 
If there is no motion, the Mayor will invite any member who wishes to speak on the petition to address 
Council for up to a maximum of 3 minutes.  
When the 15 minutes set aside for the debate (as laid down in the Council’s Petition Scheme) is up, 
the Mayor may decide to extend the time allowed for the debate but will bring it to a close when they 
feel sufficient time has been allowed. 
6. Conclusion of Debate 
The debate should conclude with one or more decisions taken pursuant to the Petition Scheme as 
follows: 

• taking the action requested in the petition (provided the matter is reserved to full 
council for decision) 

• referring the matter to Cabinet or an Appropriate Cabinet Member or Committee 
(including Overview and Scrutiny) for further consideration 

• holding an inquiry into the matter 
• undertaking research into the matter 
• holding a public meeting 
• holding a consultation 
• holding a meeting with petitioners 
• calling a referendum 
• writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the petition 
• taking no further action on the matter 

Page 20



 

   
$r1lelqh4.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 2  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If the Council considers 
the petition in the absence 
of the wider consultation 
results, any resultant 
decision would not be fully 
informed with the views of 
the wider public and is 
likely to be unsound 

Mike 
Redman 

01/11/13 4 4 16 Reduce Council report 
recommendations 

   

 If the Council does not 
take the concerns raised in 
the petition into 
consideration, it has the 
potential to undermine 
confidence in the local 
democratic process 

Mike 
Redman 

01/11/13 3 4 12 Reduce Council report 
recommendations 

   

            
            
            
Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
  

P
age 21



Page 22
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
$zvtbtgnr.doc Page 1 of 4 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 18 November 2013 

Cheltenham Transport Plan – Consultation Report 
 

Accountable member Councillor Andrew McKinlay – Cabinet Member for Built Environment 
Accountable officer Mike Redman – Director Built Environment 
Ward(s) affected All 
Significant Decision Yes 
Executive summary This report:- 

� Has been prepared in response to the receipt of the Gloucestershire 
County Council (GCC) Cheltenham Transport Plan Consultation 
Report, a report that contains detailed analysis of responses 
undertaken independently by Opinion Research Services (ORS) and 
thereby provides reassurance over the validity of the analysis. ORS 
is a Market Research Society Company and is fully compliant with 
the MRS Code of Conduct. ORS is also a member of the 
Consultation Institute and its research activities and systems are fully 
accredited to BS ISO 9001:2008 and BS ISO 20252.  

� Provides background information on the lengthy journey, in 
partnership with GCC, which has led CBC to this point in the 
process. 

� Provides a comprehensive analysis of the outcomes of the 
consultation process and additionally, provides an initial assessment 
of concerns and how these may be addressed 

In considering this report Council should take account of the concerns 
raised by certain sections of the public in the Cheltenham Transport 
Plan-Petition report. 

Recommendations That Council: 
i) considers the GCC ‘Cheltenham Transport Plan Consultation 
Report’, along with the initial suggestions for dealing with the 
concerns raised; and 
ii) supports GCC in continuing to progress to the next stage of 
concern resolution and subsequently, implementation of the 
Cheltenham Transport Plan (traffic regulation order process) in order 
to maintain the economic vibrancy and long term sustainability of the 
town.  

 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 23



 

   
$zvtbtgnr.doc Page 2 of 4 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

Financial implications None arising specifically from this report. 
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, Director of Resources, 
mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Legal implications None arising specifically from this report. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis (OneLegal), 
peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no direct HR implications arising from the content of this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, GO Shared Service Human 
Resources Manager (West), julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264355 

Key risks See risk assessment attached as Appendix 3 to this report. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Supporting the delivery of key projects aimed to consolidate the long 
term economic performance of the town  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

Improve the town centre by minimising traffic impacts and in the long 
term assist in air quality management 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

None arising specifically from this report. 
Contact officer:   David Roberts, Head of Property & Asset 
Management, david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264151 

1. Report received 
1.1 The Council has received a GCC “Cheltenham Transport Plan Consultation Report” as an 

outcome of the consultation process undertaken this summer. That report is reproduced in full at 
Appendix 1. 

1.2 The GCC Consultation Report report, at Appendix A, sets out the journey from 2001 to the 
present and the debate over the future of traffic within the town centre, although many would 
contend that this very same debate was on-going for several decades prior to 2001. It also maps 
the evidence considered by other towns when dealing with challenging road network issues.  

1.3 The report provides details of the comprehensive approach taken to the consultation exercise, 
including the delivery of 16,000 questionnaire leaflets; various exhibitions and events; specific 
consultations and widespread media coverage. 

1.4 Additionally, it provides an explanation of how the traffic modelling process has evolved with ever 
increasing levels of sophistication, through Department for Transport approved modelling tools. 

1.5 Importantly, the report identifies that the proposed road network changes are part of a much wider 
package which is supported by the successful Department for Transport Local Sustainable 
Transport bid  

2. Key outcomes 
2.1 The report includes a comprehensive analysis undertaken independently by ORS which allows for 

Page 24



 

   
$zvtbtgnr.doc Page 3 of 4 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

the responses to be analysed through the voluntary data supplied by respondents. This is 
important, as it demonstrates that responses were obtained across a wide age demographic 
(although disappointingly no under 17’s); individuals with a declared disability; residents, workers 
or visitors to Gloucestershire; respondents in terms of their preferred method of travel around 
Cheltenham, and also by Cheltenham declared home postcode areas. 

2.2 When asked whether or not they support the package of measures contained in the Cheltenham 
Transport Plan, 44% said yes, 28% said yes, but with reservations and 27% said no, they do not 
support the plan. 

2.3 The detailed analysis identifies that respondents with the following characteristics are more likely 
than average to support the Cheltenham Transport Plan – aged 17-34; female; travel on foot 
around Cheltenham; live in Central or North area of Cheltenham.  

2.4 The characteristics of the respondents significantly more likely than average to say no, they do 
not support the Transport Plan are – aged 75 or over; prefer to travel by car; and live in the South 
area of Cheltenham. 

2.5 However, the exercise was not a simple referendum and thus, much more detail and 
understanding can also be extracted from the detailed commentaries provided. These are 
analysed by category (by ORS) and have been comprehensively considered in a separate GCC 
report covering concerns and mitigations 

2.6  The document does not consider the petition submitted to Cheltenham Borough Council, as it 
was not part of the formal consultation process. 

2.7  An additional document, set out as appendix 2, provides further detail to the ‘summary of 
common themes’ from consultation questionnaire responses, noted in section 5.3 and section 5.4 
of the core report. This appendix notes the issues raised, the initial response of the highway team 
and critically, suggestions for how such issues could be addressed. It is recognised that this is an 
initial analysis and further work will be required to further explore the proposals, especially zones 
where there are identified concerns, such as St. Lukes and St. Pauls.  

2.8 The GCC post implementation review of enacted measures is essential and CBC is committed to 
work with GCC in the delivery of any further identified mitigation required. The timeframe for this 
monitoring and review process will reflect the impact of changes to the highway network and 
these should be apparent within six months. 

 
2.9  The Borough Council has also received support for the process from the Cheltenham 

Development Task Force which considered the outcomes at a meeting on 5th November, 2013 
and noted the following:   

 
“The Cheltenham Development Task Force has considered the reports and appendices prepared 
by GCC concerning the Cheltenham Transport Plan. Having considered the documents, the Task 
Force: 

  
• welcomes the consultation process; 
• notes the generally favourable public response; 
• recognises the concerns raised; 
• welcomes the commitment of CBC and GCC to work in partnership to deliver; 
• responses to the concerns raised as appropriate. 
 

The Task Force considers that this, along with other commercial developments and public realm 
improvements will assist in maintaining the long term vibrancy of Cheltenham town centre.” 
 

3. Conclusion 

Page 25



 

   
$zvtbtgnr.doc Page 4 of 4 Last updated 06 November 2013 
 

3.1 The Cheltenham Transport Plan Consultation Report clearly supports a conclusion that the 
proposals have generally been positively received by the public. Additionally, with appropriate 
mitigation, as set out in the separate report, it would appear that many of the concerns raised can 
be tackled.  

 
3.2 The issues raised by the petition appear to have also been raised through the formal consultation 

process, so it is fair to assume that whilst the same number of petitioners did not formally register 
their concerns, the nature of the concerns are reflected in the outcomes of the formal process. 

 

Report author Contact officer:  Mike Redman, Director Built Environment, 
mike.redman@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264160 

 
 

Appendix 1 GCC Cheltenham Transport Plan Consultation Report 2013 including 
appendices 
Available on the GCC website  using the following link 
http://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/trp/travel/ctp/ctp 
 

 

Page 26



 
  

 

1 
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

co
m

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

n
ai

re
 r

es
p

o
n

se
s.

 
Li

st
 o

f A
bb

re
vi

at
io

ns
: 

G
C

C
 –

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

C
B

C
 –

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 

C
T

P
 –

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 

LS
T

F
 –

 L
oc

al
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
un

d 

G
H

 –
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

 
N

o
. 

Is
su

e 
W

h
at

 t
h

ey
 t

o
ld

 u
s 

O
u

r 
C

o
m

m
en

ts
 

S
u

g
g

es
ti

o
n

 
1 

S
af

et
y 

 
C

on
ce

rn
 

ab
ou

t 
bu

se
s,

 
ta

xi
s,

 
de

liv
er

ie
s,

 
cy

cl
is

ts
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

ni
se

d 
ar

ea
. 

S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

w
or

k 
pr

oc
ee

d 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 
ph

as
e 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
w

ill
 s

ee
 l

im
ite

d,
 if

 a
ny

, 
al

te
ra

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

at
 B

oo
ts

 C
or

ne
r.

 T
he

 f
oo

tw
ay

/c
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

 
la

yo
ut

 w
ill

 r
em

ai
n 

as
 e

xi
st

in
g 

un
til

 s
uc

h 
tim

e 
as

 C
B

C
 

ha
ve

 a
n 

ag
re

ed
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 h
ow

 t
o 

sa
fe

ly
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

bu
se

s,
 t

ax
is

, 
de

liv
er

ie
s,

 c
yc

lis
ts

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 w
ith

in
 

an
 u

rb
an

 r
ea

lm
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
T

he
se

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill

 
be

 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 
sc

ru
tin

y 
by

 
th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 v

ar
io

us
 

gr
ou

ps
 

al
re

ad
y 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

ab
ou

t 
be

st
 

de
si

gn
 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

di
sa

bl
ed

 
fo

ru
m

, 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 u

ni
t a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
gr

ou
ps

. 
T

he
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
in

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 

of
 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t 
be

tw
ee

n 
P

rim
ar

k 
an

d 
B

en
ni

ng
to

n 
S

tr
ee

t 
ha

s 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 t
ha

t 
ca

re
fu

l 
de

si
gn

 c
ou

pl
ed

 w
ith

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

ca
n 

pr
od

uc
e 

an
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

w
he

re
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
ed

.  

P
er

m
it 

bu
se

s,
 t

ax
is

, 
de

liv
er

ie
s 

an
d 

cy
cl

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
re

 
ar

ea
 

in
 

tr
af

fic
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

. 
M

on
ito

r 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

du
rin

g 
pe

rio
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
 o

f 
dr

iv
in

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
re

al
m

 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
. 

R
ev

is
it 

ex
em

pt
io

ns
 

be
fo

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

ur
ba

n 
re

al
m

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
. 

E
ns

ur
e 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 
ca

te
r 

fo
r 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 

in
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

. 
  

2 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

C
on

ce
rn

 
ov

er
 

P
os

t 
O

ffi
ce

 
La

ne
 

be
co

m
in

g 
on

e-
w

ay
. 

If 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

us
e 

P
os

t 
O

ffi
ce

 L
an

e 
in

 a
 

N
or

th
bo

un
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
th

e 
m

an
da

to
ry

 r
ig

ht
 t

ur
n 

at
 t

he
 

C
la

re
nc

e 
S

t 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ill
 f

or
ce

 a
ll 

ve
hi

cl
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 o
f d

riv
in

g.
 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 P

os
t 

O
ffi

ce
 L

an
e 

ne
ed

s 
be

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f b
us

in
es

se
s 

th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

it.
 

P
os

t 
O

ffi
ce

 L
an

e 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
on

e 
w

ay
 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 

fo
r 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
tr

af
fic

 
to

 
en

ab
le

 
th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 
of

 
dr

iv
in

g.
 

C
on

tr
a-

flo
w

 
cy

cl
in

g 
co

ul
d 

be
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

pr
io

r 
to

 
T

R
O

 
ad

ve
rt

is
em

en
ts

 
al

th
ou

gh
 

be
tte

r 

Page 27



 
  

 

2 
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 r
ou

te
s 

ex
is

t f
or

 c
yc

lis
ts

. 
3 

S
af

et
y 

K
ee

p 
pe

lic
an

 
cr

os
si

ng
 

in
 

R
oy

al
 

W
el

l.  
T

he
 p

el
ic

an
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

in
 R

oy
al

 W
el

l 
R

oa
d 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
 

w
el

l 
us

ed
 f

ac
ili

ty
 d

ue
 t

o 
th

e 
tr

af
fic

 v
ol

um
e/

pe
de

st
ria

n 
flo

w
/w

id
th

 o
f r

oa
d.

 
T

he
 p

ro
hi

bi
tio

n 
of

 d
riv

in
g 

in
 C

la
re

nc
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

w
ill

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 t

he
 t

ra
ffi

c 
flo

w
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
pe

lic
an

 l
oc

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

uc
h 

re
du

ce
d.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
is

 it
 is

 th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
to

 
br

in
g 

cl
ar

ity
 

to
 

th
e 

ne
w

 
no

 
en

tr
y 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
in

 
a 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 d

ire
ct

io
n,

 f
ro

m
 C

la
re

nc
e 

P
ar

ad
e 

in
to

 R
oy

al
 

W
el

l R
oa

d,
 b

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 n

ar
ro

w
in

g 
th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
.  

B
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
ab

ov
e 

it 
w

as
 t

he
 p

os
iti

on
 t

ha
t 

a 
si

gn
al

is
ed

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
po

in
t w

as
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
at

 th
is

 
lo

ca
tio

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
 f

ro
m

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
t 

th
e 

ex
hi

bi
tio

ns
 

an
d 

fr
om

 t
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 t

he
re

 
is

 
cl

ea
rly

 
a 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
th

at
 

a 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

cr
os

si
ng

 
is

 
re

qu
ire

d.
 I

n 
lig

ht
 o

f 
th

is
 i

t 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 a

lo
ng

 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
ot

w
ay

 w
id

th
 i

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 t

o 
in

st
al

l 
a 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 t

o 
re

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
ou

td
at

ed
 p

el
ic

an
 in

st
al

la
tio

n.
 

In
cl

ud
e 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

pe
lic

an
 l

oc
at

io
n 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
ke

rb
 

lin
e 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
.  

4 
S

af
et

y 
C

on
ce

rn
 o

ve
r 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
s.

 
T

he
 o

nl
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
re

m
ov

al
 a

re
 

w
he

re
 e

ith
er

; 
am

en
de

d 
tr

af
fic

 f
lo

w
 i

nd
ic

at
es

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
y 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 i
s 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
it 

(i.
e.

 z
eb

ra
 o

r 
is

la
nd

) 
or

 t
he

 t
ra

ffi
c 

flo
w

 i
s 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 t

o 
be

co
m

e 
su

ch
 

th
at

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 w

ou
ld

 h
ar

dl
y 

ev
er

 b
e 

us
ed

 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 w

ou
ld

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 m

ee
t t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

a 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 

A
ll 

de
si

gn
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

au
di

ts
 a

s 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

ce
ed

s,
 b

ef
or

e 
w

or
ks

 a
re

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

on
 s

ite
 

an
d 

on
ce

 a
ga

in
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

si
te

 c
om

pl
et

io
n.

 

S
ub

m
it 

de
si

gn
s 

fo
r 

sa
fe

ty
/m

ob
ili

ty
 

au
di

ts
 a

s 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

gr
es

se
s.

 

5 
S

af
et

y 
P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 

ne
ed

ed
 

fr
om

 
M

on
tp

el
lie

r 
G

ar
de

ns
. 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
 t

o 
tr

af
fic

 o
r 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
flo

w
 i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
 a

ro
un

d 
M

on
tp

el
lie

r 
G

ar
de

ns
. 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

6 
S

af
et

y 
S

to
p 

tr
af

fic
 

fr
om

 
R

od
ne

y 
R

oa
d 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t.  
  

 

T
he

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pr

op
os

al
s 

di
d 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
y 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
to

 d
riv

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ro
ut

e 
R

od
ne

y 
R

oa
d 

– 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t –

 W
in

ch
co

m
be

 S
tr

ee
t. 

 
T

he
re

 i
s 

a 
cu

rr
en

t 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fo

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 t

o 
us

e 
th

is
 

ro
ut

e 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

ie
s,

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

ho
ps

, 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

P
&

D
 

Im
po

se
 

no
 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
at

 
th

is
 

tim
e.

 
M

on
ito

r 
tr

af
fic

 f
lo

w
/s

pe
ed

/b
eh

av
io

ur
 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y 

sh
ou

ld
 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
 a

t B
oo

ts
 C

or
ne

r 
pr

oc
ee

d.
 

Page 28



 
  

 

3 
 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g.
  

It 
ha

s 
lo

ng
 b

ee
n 

ap
pa

re
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

te
am

 f
or

 t
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

th
is

 
ro

ut
e 

to
 

be
co

m
e 

bu
si

er
 

w
ith

 
tr

af
fic

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

of
 d

riv
in

g 
at

 
B

oo
ts

 C
or

ne
r.

 
A

lth
ou

gh
 i

t 
is

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

th
at

 a
ny

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 t
ra

ffi
c 

in
 

th
is

 
ar

ea
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

is
 

un
de

si
ra

bl
e 

it 
is

 f
el

t 
th

at
 r

es
tr

ic
tin

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
tr

af
fic

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 d

iff
ic

ul
t 

to
 e

nf
or

ce
 g

iv
en

 t
he

 n
um

er
ou

s 
ex

em
pt

io
ns

 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
7 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
 

M
or

e 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d.
 

O
ve

r 
80

%
 o

f 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 u
se

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 
G

C
C

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

up
po

rt
; 

i.e
. t

he
 b

us
 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
em

 
as

 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
ei

r 
no

rm
al

 
bu

si
ne

ss
. 

T
he

re
fo

re
 it

 is
 im

po
rt

an
t 

fo
r 

th
em

 t
ha

t 
in

co
m

e 
co

ve
rs

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 r
un

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

W
he

re
 i

nc
om

e 
is

 i
ns

uf
fic

ie
nt

 t
o 

co
ve

r 
co

st
s 

th
en

 t
he

 
G

C
C

 c
an

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

up
po

rt
 t

o 
ru

n 
a 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
D

ec
is

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 h

ow
 p

ub
lic

 f
un

ds
 a

re
 s

pe
nt

 h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

G
C

C
. 

F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 a

ny
 d

ec
is

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
un

di
ng

 f
or

 
bu

s 
or

 c
om

m
un

ity
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 r
ou

te
s 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
ho

w
 

m
an

y 
us

er
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 
su

ch
 

as
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

no
n-

em
er

ge
nc

y 
he

al
th

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 G

P
 s

ur
ge

rie
s,

 a
nd

 
es

se
nt

ia
l s

ho
pp

in
g.

   
 

G
C

C
’s

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
te

am
 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 

pu
bl

ic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

to
 s

ee
k 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 c
as

es
 

w
he

re
 it

 is
 b

ot
h 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
.  

  
 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

8 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

M
or

e 
pa

rk
 

an
d 

rid
e 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 p

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

si
te

 a
t 

E
lm

br
id

ge
 is

 
ab

ou
t 

to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 
in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

in
 2

01
5.

 
P

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

si
te

s 
at

 B
ro

ck
w

or
th

/S
hu

rd
in

gt
on

, 
W

es
t 

of
 

G
lo

uc
es

te
r 

an
d 

U
ck

in
gt

on
 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
Lo

ca
l 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

3 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

up
 t

o 
20

26
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, 
no

 s
ite

s 
ha

ve
 y

et
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 

no
r 

ha
s 

fu
nd

in
g 

be
en

 s
ec

ur
ed

. 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Page 29



 
  

 

4 
 9 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
P

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 t
oo

 f
ar

 
fo

r 
so

m
e 

pe
op

le
. 

   

It 
is

 
un

de
rs

to
od

 
th

at
 

pa
rk

 
an

d 
rid

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ca
nn

ot
 

al
w

ay
s 

be
 p

os
iti

on
ed

 s
o 

th
at

 t
he

y 
ca

n 
se

rv
e 

ab
so

lu
te

ly
 

ev
er

yb
od

y.
 

S
ite

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
fo

r 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 c

an
 m

ee
t a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
em

an
d.

  

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

10
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
M

ak
e 

bu
se

s 
ch

ea
pe

r.
 

A
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 t
he

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 c
om

m
en

t 
7,

 w
el

l o
ve

r 
80

%
 

of
 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 

us
e 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
th

at
 

do
 

no
t 

re
ce

iv
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 
G

C
C

. 
T

he
re

 
ar

e 
m

an
y 

fa
ct

or
s 

th
at

 
in

flu
en

ce
 fa

re
s 

ch
ar

ge
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 -

 
 

W
ag

es
 a

nd
 c

os
ts

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t s

uc
h 

as
 

na
tio

na
l i

ns
ur

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
en

si
on

s 
– 

no
t o

nl
y 

fo
r 

dr
iv

er
s 

bu
t m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 te

am
s,

 c
le

an
er

s,
 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s 

an
d 

m
an

ag
er

s.
 

 
S

ta
ff 

tr
ai

ni
ng

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 d

riv
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. A
n 

en
ha

nc
ed

 d
riv

in
g 

te
st

 a
nd

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l C
om

pe
te

nc
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

 
P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
bu

se
s 

– 
a 

br
an

d 
ne

w
 s

in
gl

e 
de

ck
 b

us
 

co
st

s 
w

el
l o

ve
r 

£1
35

,0
00

 
 

T
ic

ke
tin

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t  

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

ar
ts

 a
nd

 c
os

ts
 o

f r
ep

ai
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
an

d 
va

nd
al

is
m

  
 

F
ue

l, 
oi

l e
tc

 a
nd

 ty
re

s 
 

 
In

su
ra

nc
es

 –
 p

ub
lic

 li
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

 
 

Li
ce

nc
es

  
 

D
ep

ot
 c

os
ts

 
 H

av
in

g 
sa

id
 

th
at

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
lo

w
er

 
fa

re
 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
by

 
bu

s 
co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
S

ta
ge

co
ac

h 
M

eg
ar

id
er

s 
th

at
 

al
lo

w
 

7 
da

ys
 

un
lim

ite
d 

tr
av

el
 

in
 

an
 

ar
ea

 
su

ch
 

as
 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 

T
ow

n 
or

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

. 
G

C
C

 i
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 l
oo

ki
ng

 t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 t
ic

ke
ts

 a
nd

 p
as

se
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
us

e 
on

 m
os

t 
bu

s 
co

m
pa

ni
es

’ 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
 

th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 m
ak

in
g 

bu
s 

tr
av

el
 m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e.
 

 G
C

C
 a

ls
o 

ad
m

in
is

te
rs

 t
he

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 b
us

 
pa

ss
 s

ch
em

e 
w

he
re

by
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 r

es
id

en
ts

, 
bo

th
 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Page 30



 
  

 

5 
 

m
al

e 
an

d 
fe

m
al

e,
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
na

bl
e 

ag
e 

of
 a

 w
om

an
 

ca
n 

tr
av

el
 w

ith
ou

t c
ha

rg
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

9.
30

am
 a

nd
 1

1p
m

 o
n 

M
on

da
ys

 
to

 
F

rid
ay

s 
an

d 
an

y 
tim

e 
at

 
w

ee
ke

nd
s.

 
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 b
us

 p
as

se
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 t
ho

se
 

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

th
at

 
m

ay
 

be
 

el
ig

ib
le

 
on

 
gr

ou
nd

s 
of

 t
he

ir 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

is
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
11

 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

M
ak

e 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 

m
or

e 
re

gu
la

r 
an

d 
re

lia
bl

e.
 

A
 q

ua
lit

y 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pr

er
eq

ui
si

te
 o

f 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

m
od

al
 s

hi
ft 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

m
or

e 
pe

op
le

 t
o 

us
e 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

 
M

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ta

ke
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
w

id
er

 
LS

T
F

 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 
m

ak
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
to

 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

T
he

se
 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
a 

ne
w

 
re

al
 

tim
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 g
iv

in
g 

pe
op

le
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 o

n 
st

re
et

 a
nd

 m
ob

ile
 d

ev
ic

es
. 

T
he

 n
ew

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ill

 
al

so
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
de

la
ys

 to
 b

us
es

 
an

d 
en

su
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

re
lia

bl
e.

  
A

 l
ar

ge
 e

le
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
th

e 
C

T
P

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
of

fs
et

tin
g 

fu
tu

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 d

am
ag

e 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y.

  

M
ea

su
re

s 
to

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ar
e 

in
 

pr
og

re
ss

. 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
in

 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
le

ve
ls

 c
an

 a
id

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
.  

12
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
Im

pr
ov

e 
bu

s 
m

ap
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

A
 n

ew
 m

ul
ti-

op
er

at
or

 b
us

 m
ap

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 f

or
 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 

th
at

 
sh

ow
s 

al
l 

th
e 

m
os

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 i
n 

th
e 

to
w

n.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
op

ul
ar

 w
ith

 l
oc

al
 

pe
op

le
 

co
nt

ac
te

d 
by

 
tr

av
el

 
ad

vi
so

rs
 

an
d 

w
id

er
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
.  

   

N
ew

 b
us

 m
ap

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 
a 

m
or

e 
w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
au

di
en

ce
. 

13
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
bu

s 
st

at
io

n.
 

C
B

C
 i

nt
en

ds
 t

o 
re

de
ve

lo
p 

th
e 

si
te

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

R
oy

al
 

W
el

l B
us

 s
ta

tio
n.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
ey

 w
ill

 r
et

ai
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
bu

se
s 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
, 

an
d 

bu
s 

st
op

s/
la

yb
ys

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

  

C
B

C
 t

o 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 b
us

 s
ta

tio
n.

 

14
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

ot
he

r 
fo

rm
s 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

G
en

er
al

 m
od

al
 s

hi
ft 

is
 b

ei
ng

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
w

id
er

 
LS

T
F

 p
ro

je
ct

, m
ea

su
re

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
tr

av
el

 a
dv

is
or

s 
sp

ea
ki

ng
 

w
ith

 l
oc

al
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
bo

ut
 j

ou
rn

ey
 o

pt
io

ns
, 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

sc
ho

ol
s 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

cy
cl

in
g.

 
 

LS
T

F
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

m
od

al
 

sh
ift

 
th

ro
ug

h 
lis

te
d 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

15
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
ca

r 
pa

rk
s.

 
C

ar
 p

ar
ks

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

T
ow

n 
ar

e 
ow

ne
d 

ei
th

er
 p

riv
at

el
y 

or
 

by
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il.
. 

Im
pr

ov
e 

si
gn

in
g 

to
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

. 

Page 31



 
  

 

6 
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 h
ow

ev
er

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 t
he

 s
ig

ni
ng

 o
f 

ca
r 

pa
rk

s 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 T
ow

n.
 I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 t
he

 
on

e 
w

ay
 

sy
st

em
 

w
ill

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
B

ee
ch

w
oo

d 
A

rc
ad

e,
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

E
as

t, 
R

od
ne

y 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

R
eg

en
ts

 
A

rc
ad

e 
ca

r 
pa

rk
s.

 T
he

 n
ew

 m
ul

ti 
st

or
ey

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
gi

ve
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 a

t 
N

or
th

 P
la

ce
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 
16

 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f c

ar
 p

ar
ks

. 
A

s 
ab

ov
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

 i
t 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
pr

ic
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
re

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 o

n 
a 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

ba
si

s.
 

O
ve

rp
ric

ed
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 w
hi

ch
 le

ad
 t

o 
un

de
r 

us
ag

e 
ar

e 
no

t 
in

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

 o
f t

he
 fa

ci
lit

y 
op

er
at

or
. 

F
or

 C
B

C
 to

 c
on

si
de

r.
 

17
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
C

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

os
ts

 c
au

se
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 
sh

op
 o

ut
 o

f t
ow

n.
 

M
an

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
ef

fe
ct

 
w

he
re

 
pe

op
le

 
ch

oo
se

 
to

 
sh

op
. 

R
em

ov
in

g 
th

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
tr

af
fic

 
fr

om
 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
en

ab
le

s 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 
pu

bl
ic

 s
pa

ce
 d

es
ig

n 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

sh
op

pe
r 

an
d 

vi
si

to
r 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 a

nd
 t

he
re

fo
re

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 v

ia
bi

lit
y.

 

R
em

ov
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ea
lm

 q
ua

lit
y 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 s
ho

pp
in

g.
 

18
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
M

or
e 

ca
r 

pa
rk

s 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ou
ts

ki
rt

s 
of

 to
w

n.
 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 h

as
 a

 g
en

er
ou

s 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

ca
r 

pa
rk

s.
 C

ur
re

nt
ly

 1
4 

of
f 

st
re

et
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 a
re

 l
oc

at
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
ha

lf 
a 

ki
lo

m
et

re
 

of
 

th
e 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 

O
ffi

ce
s.

 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n 
nu

m
er

ou
s 

pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

ba
ys

 
ex

is
t 

on
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

st
re

et
s.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 fr

ee
, 

lim
ite

d 
w

ai
tin

g 
on

 s
tr

ee
t p

ar
ki

ng
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d.

 
S

ur
ve

ys
 h

av
e 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 t

he
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

to
w

n 
op

er
at

e 
w

el
l u

nd
er

 c
ap

ac
ity

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 G

ro
sv

en
or

 
T

er
ra

ce
, 

S
he

rb
ou

rn
e 

P
la

ce
 a

nd
 S

t 
G

eo
rg

es
 R

oa
d.

 A
 

ne
w

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
si

gn
in

g 
sc

he
m

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 t

yp
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

tio
n 

is
 t

o 
be

 i
nt

ro
du

ce
d 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
T

P
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 
of

fe
r 

a 
m

or
e 

co
he

si
ve

 
si

gn
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

Im
pl

em
en

t c
ar

 p
ar

k 
si

gn
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

19
 

LE
F

T
 B

LA
N

K
 

 
 

20
 

M
od

al
 S

hi
ft 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

cy
cl

e 
ne

tw
or

k.
 

O
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

ob
je

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 C

T
P

 i
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

by
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t c

ho
ic

es
.  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

cy
cl

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
ar

e 
an

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

fa
ct

or
 w

ith
in

 t
hi

s.
 E

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 c

yc
lin

g 
is

 a
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ob

je
ct

iv
e,

 i
nd

ee
d 

it 
w

as
 a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 i
n 

A
ug

us
t 

th
at

 8
 

C
iti

es
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

 w
er

e 
to

 s
ha

re
 £

77
m

 t
o 

sp
en

d 
on

 c
yc

le
 

In
cl

ud
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
to

 
pe

rm
ea

bi
lit

y 
in

 th
e 

ro
ad

s 
lis

te
d.

 
C

on
tin

ue
 

to
 

en
ga

ge
 

w
ith

 
cy

cl
e 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 Page 32



 
  

 

7 
 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
sc

he
m

es
. 

T
he

 C
T

P
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ha

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
w

ith
 l

oc
al

 c
yc

lin
g 

ad
vi

so
ry

 
gr

ou
ps

. 
A

lth
ou

gh
 

br
oa

dl
y 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
th

es
e 

gr
ou

ps
 f

el
t 

th
at

 t
he

 p
la

n 
co

ul
d 

go
 f

ur
th

er
 t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

cy
cl

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

. 
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
hi

s,
 G

C
C

 p
ro

po
se

s 
fu

rt
he

r 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 t
o 

th
os

e 
al

re
ad

y 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pr

op
os

al
 

w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
e;

 
B

at
h 

R
oa

d,
 

A
lb

io
n 

S
tr

ee
t, 

O
rie

l 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

Im
pe

ria
l 

S
qu

ar
e.

 I
m

pr
ov

ed
 c

yc
le

 l
in

ka
ge

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tw
o 

w
ay

 c
yc

lin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 f
or

 T
he

 P
ro

m
en

ad
e,

 
C

la
re

nc
e 

S
t, 

H
ig

h 
S

t, 
P

itt
vi

lle
 

S
t, 

Im
pe

ria
l 

C
irc

us
, 

W
in

ch
co

m
be

 
S

t, 
R

od
ne

y 
R

oa
d,

 
G

ro
sv

en
or

 
P

la
ce

, 
W

el
lin

gt
on

 S
t a

nd
 G

ro
sv

en
or

 S
t. 

  
T

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
pr

op
os

es
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

 t
o 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

to
 

en
ab

le
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 
m

ak
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

fo
r 

cy
cl

is
ts

 e
as

ie
r 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t. 

A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 C
T

P
 w

ill
 s

ee
k 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
in

 
th

e 
ro

ad
s 

lis
te

d 
ab

ov
e 

un
de

r 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

it 
m

ay
 b

e 
th

at
 s

om
e 

of
 t

he
 

ro
ad

s 
ar

e 
tr

ea
te

d 
on

ce
 t

he
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
ar

e 
m

ad
e.

 
G

C
C

 i
s 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
be

tte
r 

pe
rm

ea
bi

lit
y 

w
he

re
ve

r 
it 

is
 d

ee
m

ed
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
ab

le
. 

21
 

S
af

et
y 

P
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
cy

cl
e 

pa
th

s.
 

S
ee

 2
0 

ab
ov

e.
 

S
ee

 2
0 

ab
ov

e.
 

22
 

M
od

al
 S

hi
ft 

A
llo

w
 t

w
o-

w
ay

 c
yc

lin
g 

in
 o

ne
 w

ay
 

st
re

et
s.

 
S

ee
 2

0 
ab

ov
e.

 
S

ee
 2

0 
ab

ov
e.

 

23
 

S
af

et
y 

C
re

at
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 
cy

cl
e 

pa
th

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ar
ea

s.
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ev
en

ts
 it

 w
as

 a
pp

ar
en

t t
he

re
 w

as
 

a 
vi

ew
, 

al
be

it 
an

ec
do

ta
l, 

th
at

 
cy

cl
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

as
 th

e 
ca

us
e 

of
 a

cc
id

en
ts

. A
lth

ou
gh

 it
 

is
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
fin

d 
an

y 
ta

ng
ib

le
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 th

is
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
te

am
 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
es

 
th

is
 

is
 

a 
w

id
el

y 
he

ld
 

vi
ew

 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

a 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
is

su
e 

to
 

ba
la

nc
e 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

m
od

al
 s

hi
ft.

 
T

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 P

itt
vi

lle
 S

tr
ee

t, 
Im

pe
ria

l 
C

irc
us

 a
nd

 B
oo

ts
 

C
or

ne
r 

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
tr

ea
te

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ur
ba

n 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
ph

as
e 

of
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 
a 

se
gr

eg
at

ed
 

cy
cl

e/
pe

de
st

ria
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 e

as
ie

r 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 t
ha

n 
it 

is
 

fu
rt

he
r 

al
on

g 
th

e 
W

es
te

rn
 a

re
a 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 

M
ak

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

tw
o 

w
ay

 
un

-
se

gr
eg

at
ed

 
cy

cl
ew

ay
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t 
to

 
co

nn
ec

t 
w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
cy

cl
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
in

 
no

 
20

. 
 

Page 33



 
  

 

8 
 

pe
de

st
ria

ni
se

d.
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
fr

om
 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

su
gg

es
t 

th
at

 
se

gr
eg

at
ed

 
cy

cl
ew

ay
s 

w
ith

in
 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ar
ea

 
ar

e 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 
un

ob
se

rv
ed

 a
s 

ac
ce

ss
 i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
sh

op
s,

 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 

an
d 

ro
ut

es
. 

T
he

 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 

of
 

cy
cl

is
t 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
th

e 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 
on

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

co
m

bi
ne

 t
o 

su
gg

es
t 

cy
cl

e 
ro

ut
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
-s

eg
re

ga
te

d.
 

24
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
S

up
po

rt
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 tr
am

s.
 

T
he

 m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

 m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l 

tr
am

 n
et

w
or

k 
w

ou
ld

 
re

qu
ire

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

 n
ot

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

sc
op

e 
of

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

. 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

25
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
G

en
er

al
 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

pl
an

 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

F
ro

m
 t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 t
he

re
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
be

 a
 

ge
ne

ra
l l

ev
el

 o
f 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ith

 o
nl

y 
27

%
 o

f 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
en

tir
el

y 
un

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

ch
an

ge
s.

 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

26
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
P

la
ns

 a
re

 a
 w

as
te

 o
f m

on
ey

. 
S

ee
 2

5 
ab

ov
e.

 
S

ee
 2

5 
ab

ov
e.

 
27

 
N

on
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

sh
op

s 
an

d 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

ar
ea

. 
S

ec
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 

of
 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 

is
 

an
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s.
 

In
di

ca
tio

ns
 

fr
om

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 a
re

 t
ha

t, 
by

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 f
or

 
pe

op
le

, 
fu

rt
he

r 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 
re

ta
il 

ou
tle

ts
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 

E
xp

ec
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 o

cc
ur

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

28
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
Lo

w
er

 th
e 

re
nt

 fo
r 

sh
op

s.
 

T
he

 i
ss

ue
 o

f 
sh

op
 r

en
ta

l r
at

es
 is

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f 

th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

29
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
S

pe
nd

 
th

e 
m

on
ey

 
on

 
m

or
e 

im
po

rt
an

t t
hi

ng
s.

 
In

 2
01

2 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

ad
e 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 b
id

 to
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 f
or

 f
un

di
ng

 i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 t

he
 

LS
T

F
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

T
he

 b
id

 m
ad

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

fo
r 

ho
w

 a
nd

 o
n 

w
ha

t 
th

e 
m

on
ey

 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
sp

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
no

w
 

st
ip

ul
at

es
 

th
e 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

w
hi

ch
 D

fT
 m

on
ito

rs
 t

o 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e.
 

T
he

 m
on

ey
 b

ei
ng

 s
pe

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
C

T
P

 
is

 r
in

g 
fe

nc
ed

 fo
r 

th
is

 p
ur

po
se

. 

30
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
R

ep
ai

r 
po

th
ol

es
 

an
d 

re
su

rf
ac

e 
in

st
ea

d.
 

S
ee

 2
9 

ab
ov

e.
 

S
ee

 2
9 

ab
ov

e.
 

31
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
S

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
tr

ee
 p

la
nt

in
g 

O
f 

th
e 

1,
15

9 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 r
ep

lie
d 

to
 t

he
 q

ue
st

io
n;

 W
hi

ch
 

of
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 s
pa

ce
 o

pt
io

ns
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 s
up

po
rt

 f
or

 b
oo

ts
 

co
rn

er
 if

 tr
af

fic
 is

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d?

 
51

%
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
tr

ee
 

pl
an

tin
g,

 
28

%
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

at
er

 
fe

at
ur

e,
 

17
%

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

an
 

ev
en

t 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

5%
 

R
es

ul
ts

 t
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 C
B

C
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f o
ng

oi
ng

 d
es

ig
n.

 

Page 34



 
  

 

9 
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
a 

ce
nt

re
pi

ec
e 

sc
ul

pt
ur

e.
 

32
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
S

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
w

at
er

 fe
at

ur
es

. 
S

ee
 3

1 
ab

ov
e.

 
S

ee
 3

1 
ab

ov
e.

 
33

 
S

af
et

y 
C

on
ce

rn
 

ab
ou

t 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

tr
af

fic
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
on

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 r
ou

te
s.

 
 

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
ai

m
s 

of
 th

e 
C

T
P

 is
 to

 o
ffs

et
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 
of

 t
he

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 w

or
se

ni
ng

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 t

ow
n.

 
T

he
 tr

af
fic

 m
od

el
 G

C
C

 h
as

 u
se

d 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 
of

 th
e 

C
T

P
 a

nd
 w

id
er

 L
S

T
F

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 r
ed

uc
e 

ar
ea

 w
id

e 
tr

af
fic

 v
ol

um
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 m

od
el

le
d 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
(a

pp
ro

x 
3 / 4

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
) 

by
 5

-6
%

 a
ga

in
st

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 

vo
lu

m
e 

le
ve

ls
 in

 2
02

6.
 

T
he

 
tr

af
fic

 
m

od
el

lin
g 

re
po

rt
 

de
ta

ils
 

w
hi

ch
 

ro
ad

s 
w

ill
 

fe
at

ur
e 

hi
gh

er
 

tr
af

fic
 

vo
lu

m
es

 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 

fe
at

ur
e 

re
du

ce
d 

vo
lu

m
es

. T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 w
as

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

an
d 

is
 s

til
l a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

n 
th

e 
w

eb
si

te
. 

G
ai

ni
ng

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 v

ie
w

 t
ow

ar
ds

 
‘p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
n 

en
ha

nc
ed

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

w
ith

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 e
co

no
m

ic
 b

en
ef

its
 p

lu
s 

th
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

in
to

 
w

or
se

ni
ng

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 
v
e
rs
e
s
 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 
tr

af
fic

 
vo

lu
m

e 
on

 s
om

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ro

ad
s’

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

m
ot

iv
e 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n.
 

F
ro

m
 

th
e 

he
ad

lin
e 

re
su

lts
 

of
 

th
e 

w
id

e 
re

ac
hi

ng
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

it 
w

ou
ld

 s
ee

m
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 p
ub

lic
 m

an
da

te
 t

o 
pr

oc
ee

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s,

 a
lb

ei
t w

ith
 s

om
e 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
.  

T
he

 d
es

ig
n 

te
am

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 s
om

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

 
ge

nu
in

e 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

ab
le

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
tr

af
fic

 v
ol

um
e 

on
 c

er
ta

in
 r

oa
ds

. W
hi

le
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
in

g 
th

e 
de

m
oc

ra
tic

 m
an

da
te

 t
o 

pr
oc

ee
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
y 

w
ay

 o
f 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
in

 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 o
th

er
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t: 
 

20
m

ph
 z

on
e 

on
 S

t P
au

ls
 R

d 
an

d 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
. 

 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 ta
xi

 r
an

k 
ou

ts
id

e 
T

he
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 
O

ffi
ce

s.
 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 A
ll 

S
ai

nt
s 

R
oa

d.
 

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 fu
rt

he
r 

lia
is

on
 w

ith
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 L
ad

ie
s 

C
ol

le
ge

 a
ro

un
d 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d.
 

 
U

pg
ra

de
 S

an
df

or
d 

R
oa

d 
cr

os
si

ng
. 

P
ro

ce
ed

 
w

ith
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

su
gg

es
te

d 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 

Page 35



 
  

 

10
 

 

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 V
A

S
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
t T

hi
rle

st
ai

ne
 R

oa
d.

 
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

C
hr

is
to

w
e 

La
ne

 z
eb

ra
 p

os
iti

on
. 

 
O

ffe
r 

S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ve

l P
la

n 
as

si
st

an
ce

 to
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 
C

ol
le

ge
 J

un
io

r 
S

ch
oo

l. 
 

M
ak

e 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 s

ig
na

lis
ed

 ju
nc

tio
n 

tim
in

gs
 a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

ar
ou

nd
 T

ow
n.

 

T
he

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ab
ov

e 
do

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 r
oa

ds
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
pe

tit
io

n.
 G

lo
uc

es
te

r 
R

oa
d 

is
 t

o 
be

ne
fit

 f
ro

m
 t

ra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

 
w

or
ks

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

in
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
an

d 
S

t 
G

eo
rg

es
 

S
tr

ee
t 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ill

 f
or

m
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 S

t 
M

ar
ga

re
ts

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 
op

tim
is

at
io

n 
re

vi
ew

 (
se

e 
57

).
 S

ho
ul

d 
C

B
C

 b
e 

m
in

de
d 

to
 

pr
oc

ee
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

it 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
te

am
 

sh
ou

ld
 o

pe
n 

a 
di

al
og

ue
 w

ith
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
 f

ro
m

 S
t 

Lu
ke

s,
 C

ol
le

ge
 R

d,
 O

ld
 B

at
h 

R
d,

 H
ew

le
tt 

R
d 

an
d 

A
ll 

S
ai

nt
s 

R
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
w

ha
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 a

dd
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

lis
t a

bo
ve

. 
34

 
S

af
et

y 
K

ee
p 

tw
o 

la
ne

s 
in

 B
at

h 
R

d.
 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

B
at

h 
R

oa
d 

to
 o

ne
 la

ne
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t 
an

d 
O

rie
l 

R
oa

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

n 
as

pi
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
tim

e 
to

 i
nc

re
as

e 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
e 

sp
ee

ds
. 

It 
al

so
 g

iv
es

 u
s 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

ot
he

r 
is

su
es

. 
Is

su
e:

 P
oo

r 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

ro
un

d 
T

he
 S

tr
an

d.
 

P
ro

po
sa

l: 
R

em
ov

e 
tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

. 

Is
su

e:
 E

ve
ni

ng
 c

ru
is

er
s 

us
in

g 
th

e 
B

at
h 

R
oa

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 
‘th

e 
ci

rc
ui

t’.
 

P
ro

po
sa

l: 
re

st
ric

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

sp
ee

di
ng

. 

Is
su

e:
 D

iff
ic

ul
ty

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
B

at
h 

R
oa

d.
 

P
ro

po
sa

l: 
N

ar
ro

w
er

 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 

w
id

th
s 

ai
de

d 
w

ith
 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 s

af
e 

in
fo

rm
al

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
po

in
ts

.  

Is
su

e:
 A

lte
ra

tio
n 

of
 O

rie
l R

oa
d 

to
 t

w
o-

w
ay

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 

a 
ne

w
 s

ig
na

lis
ed

 j
un

ct
io

n 
at

 B
at

h 
R

oa
d 

if 
tw

o 
la

ne
s 

D
ev

el
op

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

B
at

h 
R

oa
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

of
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

ru
nn

in
g 

la
ne

s.
 

Page 36



 
  

 

11
 

 

ex
is

te
d 

on
 B

at
h 

R
oa

d.
 

P
ro

po
sa

l: 
In

st
al

l g
iv

e 
w

ay
 ju

nc
tio

n.
 

35
 

S
af

et
y 

C
on

ce
rn

 
ab

ou
t 

re
m

ov
al

 
of

 
tr

af
fic

 
si

gn
al

s.
 

G
C

C
 a

nd
 G

H
 o

fte
n 

re
ce

iv
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

 in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
C

he
lte

nh
am

. T
he

 r
em

ov
al

 
of

 t
ra

ffi
c 

si
gn

al
s 

un
de

r 
th

es
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ha

ve
 o

nl
y 

be
en

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

re
 t

he
 a

lte
re

d 
tr

af
fic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
s 

of
 d

riv
in

g 
w

ill
 le

ad
 t

o 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 
tr

af
fic

 f
lo

w
s 

le
av

in
g 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

si
gn

al
s 

su
pe

rf
lu

ou
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ca
us

e 
of

 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
de

la
y 

or
 

co
ng

es
tio

n.
 

T
he

 
pr

op
os

al
 i

n 
th

e 
T

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 s

ee
ks

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
si

gn
al

is
ed

 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 

un
le

ss
 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
tr

af
fic

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

re
as

on
s.

 

R
em

ov
e 

si
gn

al
s 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

36
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ov
er

 
ac

ce
ss

 
on

ce
 

ch
an

ge
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e.

 
A

cc
es

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ill
 c

le
ar

ly
 b

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 
pr

op
os

al
s.

  
A

cc
es

s 
to

 R
od

ne
y 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
R

eg
en

t 
S

tr
ee

t 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 
G

ro
sv

en
or

 P
la

ce
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

an
d 

th
e 

B
ee

ch
w

oo
d 

sh
op

pi
ng

 
ce

nt
re

 w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

ea
si

er
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
re

vo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

on
e 

w
ay

 tr
af

fic
 o

rd
er

s.
 

T
he

 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 
of

 
dr

iv
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
B

oo
ts

 
C

or
ne

r 
w

ill
 

m
ea

n 
th

at
 

it 
w

ill
 

no
t 

be
 

po
ss

ib
le

 
to

 
dr

iv
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

C
la

re
nc

e 
S

tr
ee

t/N
or

th
 S

tr
ee

t 
or

 P
itt

vi
lle

 S
tr

ee
t/I

m
pe

ria
l 

C
irc

us
. 

It 
is

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

to
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 
ro

ut
es

 fo
r 

bu
se

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

en
ab

le
 a

cc
es

s 
ea

si
er

 it
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ci

de
d 

to
 

ex
em

pt
 h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

of
 d

riv
in

g 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

da
y 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ev

en
in

g 
ho

ur
s.

  
T

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 a

 s
ug

ge
st

io
n 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 li
gh

tly
 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
co

nc
er

n 
ab

ou
t 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
ar

ea
 g

en
er

al
ly

, 
as

 o
ut

lin
ed

 i
n 

nu
m

be
r 

1.
 I

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
th

at
 t

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
on

 a
 b

as
is

 o
f 

co
ns

ta
nt

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
o 

en
su

re
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

co
ns

id
er

at
e 

dr
iv

in
g 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
le

ve
l 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

.  

P
er

m
it 

ha
ck

ne
y 

ca
rr

ia
ge

s 
in

to
 c

or
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
da

y 
an

d 
ev

en
in

g.
 

37
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
A

cc
es

s 
an

d 
pi

ck
 u

p 
fo

r 
el

de
rly

 a
nd

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 d

riv
er

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt.
 

S
ee

 3
6 

ab
ov

e.
 

 
S

ee
 3

6 
ab

ov
e.

 
 

38
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
N

ew
 

ac
ce

ss
 

ro
ut

es
 

w
ill

 
co

nf
us

e 
S

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 t

o 
pr

oc
ee

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 b
e 

F
ur

th
er

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

at
 

de
ta

ile
d 

Page 37



 
  

 

12
 

 

lo
ca

l 
pe

op
le

 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 

– 
ne

ed
 

cl
ea

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

m
ad

e,
 t

he
 n

ex
t 

ph
as

e 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

to
 b

eg
in

 a
 

de
ta

ile
d 

de
si

gn
 o

f 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 

A
t 

th
is

 
po

in
t 

w
e 

w
ill

 
ex

am
in

e 
ho

w
 t

he
 w

or
k 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

qu
en

ce
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
w

es
t i

m
pa

ct
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

ho
w

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

cl
ea

r 
to

 r
oa

d 
us

er
s 

th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

flo
w

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
al

te
re

d.
 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
al

l r
oa

d 
si

gn
in

g 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 m

ak
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 

fo
r 

cl
ar

ity
 a

nd
 d

e-
cl

ut
te

rin
g.

 

de
si

gn
 p

ha
se

. 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

si
gn

in
g 

re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
.  

39
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
N

o 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
of

 
tr

af
fic

 
fr

om
 

fu
tu

re
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

si
te

s.
 

In
 t

he
 2

01
6 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
r 

tr
af

fic
 m

od
el

lin
g,

 t
he

 f
or

ec
as

t 
 tr

af
fic

 
gr

ow
th

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

al
l 

ho
us

in
g,

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
an

d 
re

ta
il 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 w
ith

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 a

ll 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 a
nd

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
C

he
lte

nh
am

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

pe
rio

d,
  

w
ith

 a
ll 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
. 

F
or

 t
he

 f
or

ec
as

t 
pe

rio
d 

20
16

 t
o 

20
26

, 
gr

ow
th

 f
ac

to
rs

 
w

er
e 

ex
tr

ac
te

d 
fr

om
 

T
E

M
P

R
O

 
an

d 
ap

pl
ie

d 
fo

r 
‘c

ar
 

dr
iv

er
s’

 
in

 
th

e 
C

he
lte

nh
am

 
ar

ea
 

(T
E

M
P

R
O

 
is

 
a 

D
fT

 
da

ta
ba

se
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
 e

st
im

at
es

 f
or

 t
he

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

po
pu

la
tio

n,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

tr
ip

 e
nd

s 
fo

r 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 
fu

tu
re

 
ye

ar
s,

 
an

d 
ta

ke
s 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 

al
l 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
on

 
an

 
ar

ea
-w

id
e 

ba
si

s)
. 

 A
s 

T
E

M
P

R
O

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
ov

er
 L

ig
ht

 G
oo

ds
 a

nd
 H

ea
vy

 G
oo

ds
 

V
eh

ic
le

s,
 g

ro
w

th
 f

ac
to

rs
 f

or
 t

he
se

 w
er

e 
de

riv
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

D
fT

’s
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 N

at
io

na
l  

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 M

od
el

 (
N

T
E

M
).

 
T

he
re

fo
re

, 
al

l 
la

nd
 

us
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
w

ith
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
at

 
th

e 
tim

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

ye
ar

 
tr

af
fic

 
fo

re
ca

st
s 

w
er

e 
de

riv
ed

 
w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 
th

e 
tr

af
fic

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t e
xe

rc
is

e 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

40
  

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
C

on
ce

rn
 

ab
ou

t 
O

rie
l 

R
d 

(a
nd

 
Im

pe
ria

l L
an

e,
 A

lb
io

n 
S

t)
 b

ec
om

in
g 

tw
o 

w
ay

. 

T
he

 a
lte

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
ro

ad
s 

fr
om

 o
ne

-w
ay

 to
 tw

o-
w

ay
 is

 
w

ith
 t

he
 in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 e
as

e 
of

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 t

he
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 n
ee

d 
to

 
dr

iv
e 

to
 g

et
 to

 th
ei

r 
de

st
in

at
io

n.
 

It 
al

so
 p

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 f

or
 g

re
at

er
 p

er
m

ea
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

cy
cl

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 a

dv
ic

e 
su

gg
es

ts
 i

s 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 p

re
ve

nt
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

to
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f c
yc

lis
ts

.  

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 

bu
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
to

 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n.
 

41
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
on

ce
rn

 
ab

ou
t 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

T
he

 p
ub

lic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 C
T

P
 a

tte
m

pt
ed

 t
o 

us
e 

al
l 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Page 38



 
  

 

13
 

 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 

av
en

ue
s 

to
 r

ea
ch

 a
s 

m
an

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
as

 
po

ss
ib

le
 

w
hi

le
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
pl

en
ty

 
of

 
tim

e 
to

 
se

ek
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

he
re

 
it 

w
as

 
de

si
re

d.
 

S
om

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f h
ow

 w
e 

tr
ie

d 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 w
er

e;
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pa

ck
s 

to
 1

6,
00

0 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 u
nd

er
to

ok
 1

0 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 i
ni

tia
lly

 a
dd

in
g 

an
ot

he
r 

3 
in

 A
ug

us
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

qu
es

ts
, 

re
sp

on
de

d 
to

 e
m

ai
ls

 f
or

 f
ur

th
er

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n,
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

 a
re

a 
of

 t
he

 w
eb

si
te

 t
o 

ho
us

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ad
de

d 
to

 
it 

as
 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

be
ca

m
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 e
ffe

ct
ed

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
of

fe
re

d 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
en

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 r

es
po

nd
 d

ire
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
lin

e.
 

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 G
C

C
 a

sk
ed

 T
he

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

In
st

itu
te

 t
o 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

e 
C

T
P

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ex
pe

rt
 w

as
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
em

 f
or

 
th

is
 r

ol
e.

 
T

he
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
In

st
itu

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

po
rt

in
g 

th
ei

r 
fin

di
ng

s 
 

in
 d

ue
 c

ou
rs

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

re
po

rt
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 
G

C
C

’s
 w

eb
si

te
 

w
w

w
.g

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
.g

ov
.u

k/
ch

el
te

nh
am

tp
 

42
 

S
af

et
y 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
at

 
B

oo
ts

 
C

or
ne

r.
 

R
at

he
r 

th
an

 t
ak

in
g 

st
ep

s 
to

 m
er

el
y 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 s

pe
ed

 
lim

it,
 t

he
 o

ng
oi

ng
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 r

ea
lm

 s
ch

em
e 

by
 

C
B

C
 w

ill
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

th
at

 t
he

 i
nt

en
de

d 
de

si
gn

 s
pe

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
lo

w
 

an
d 

w
ill

 
be

 
ca

te
re

d 
fo

r 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y.
 

U
rb

an
 r

ea
lm

 s
ch

em
e 

to
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 

to
 

on
ly

 
en

ab
le

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ve

hi
cl

e 
sp

ee
ds

. 

43
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
tr

af
fic

 
si

gn
al

s.
 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
m

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 

pu
bl

ic
 

de
si

re
 

to
 

re
du

ce
 

tr
af

fic
 

si
gn

al
is

ed
 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 
w

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

an
d 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nf
in

es
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

. 
T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

re
m

ov
es

 f
iv

e 
si

gn
al

is
ed

 j
un

ct
io

ns
 

an
d 

on
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 (

se
e 

no
.3

) 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

es
 

w
ith

 m
ea

su
re

s 
m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

tr
af

fic
 

vo
lu

m
es

.  

T
ra

ffi
c 

si
gn

al
s 

re
m

ov
ed

 w
ith

in
 s

co
pe

 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
he

re
ve

r 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

44
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
C

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

cc
es

s 
w

ill
 

de
te

r 
vi

si
to

rs
 to

 to
w

n.
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
tw

o 
ve

ry
 

ce
nt

ra
l 

ro
ad

s 
is

 
to

 
be

 
re

st
ric

te
d,

 a
cc

es
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
to

w
n 

is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
un

de
r 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s.
 I

t 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Page 39



 
  

 

14
 

 

th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 t

he
 to

w
n 

is
 n

ot
 b

ei
ng

 r
ed

uc
ed

 b
ut

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

s 
a 

th
ro

ug
h 

ro
ut

e 
is

. 
D

iff
ic

ul
ty

 i
n 

ne
go

tia
tin

g 
th

e 
on

e 
w

ay
 s

ys
te

m
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
fin

di
ng

 
ca

r 
pa

rk
s 

w
ill

 
be

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

by
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

tw
o-

w
ay

 
tr

af
fic

 
flo

w
s 

an
d 

a 
ne

w
 

si
gn

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

. 
T

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
to

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

at
 B

oo
ts

 C
or

ne
r 

is
 

se
t 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 t

he
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
fo

r 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 s

ho
pp

in
g 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

al
l 

of
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

le
ad

 t
o 

m
or

e 
vi

si
to

rs
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 fe

w
er

. 
45

 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

O
pp

os
e 

pl
an

s 
as

 t
he

y 
w

ill
 i

nc
re

as
e 

tr
af

fic
 p

ro
bl

em
. 

T
he

 t
ra

ffi
c 

m
od

el
lin

g 
re

po
rt

 i
de

nt
ifi

es
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
re

du
ce

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 t

ra
ffi

c 
vo

lu
m

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

by
 

5-
6%

 a
ga

in
st

 p
re

di
ct

io
ns

 fo
r 

20
26

. 
A

lth
ou

gh
 it

 is
 c

le
ar

 t
ha

t 
so

m
e 

ro
ut

es
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

se
e 

an
 

in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 
tr

af
fic

 
vo

lu
m

e 
as

 
a 

di
re

ct
 

re
su

lt 
of

 
th

e 
al

te
ra

tio
ns

 t
he

re
 a

re
 p

la
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
 

of
 th

is
 (

se
e 

no
.3

3)
. 

C
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 n
o.

 
33

. 

46
 

S
af

et
y 

P
ed

es
tr

ia
ni

sa
tio

n 
w

ill
 l

ea
d 

to
 m

or
e 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 is
su

es
 a

t n
ig

ht
. 

It 
is

 u
nd

er
st

an
da

bl
e 

th
at

 t
he

 s
en

se
 o

f 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 h

ig
he

r 
le

ve
l 

of
 

pa
ss

in
g 

su
rv

ei
lla

nc
e 

fr
om

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

us
in

g 
C

la
re

nc
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

co
ul

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 

th
e 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 
pe

rs
on

al
 s

af
et

y.
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 v
ol

um
e 

of
 t

ra
ffi

c 
is

 t
o 

be
 r

ed
uc

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
 

of
 

dr
iv

in
g 

th
er

e 
is

 
a 

ba
la

nc
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 s
af

et
y 

of
 s

ep
ar

at
in

g 
ni

gh
t 

tim
e 

re
ve

lle
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

ra
ffi

c.
 D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

th
e 

ni
gh

t-
tim

e 
ec

on
om

y 
th

er
e 

is
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 

to
 b

e 
le

ss
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 t
ra

ffi
c 

th
ro

ug
h 

be
in

g 
di

st
ra

ct
ed

 o
r 

un
de

r 
th

e 
in

flu
en

ce
 o

f a
lc

oh
ol

. 

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

47
 

M
od

al
 S

hi
ft 

P
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g.

 
T

he
 L

S
T

F
 p

ro
je

ct
 i

s 
fu

nd
in

g 
a 

sc
he

m
e 

to
 i

nc
re

as
e 

th
e 

cy
cl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 C

he
lte

nh
am

. 
T

he
 s

ch
em

e 
is

 
se

t t
o 

in
st

al
l p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

an
ot

he
r 

52
 b

ic
yc

le
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
m

id
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
13

.  

N
on

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

48
 

LE
F

T
 B

LA
N

K
 

 
 

49
 

S
af

et
y 

C
on

ce
rn

 a
bo

ut
 n

ew
 a

cc
es

s 
ro

ut
es

 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 
co

lle
ge

s,
 

am
bu

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

. 

T
he

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

of
 d

riv
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

la
re

nc
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

P
itt

vi
lle

 
S

tr
ee

t 
w

ill
 

no
t 

af
fe

ct
 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 c

ol
le

ge
s,

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
. 

A
lte

ra
tio

ns
 e

ith
er

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
to

 c
au

se
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
 

or
 

lo
ca

lis
ed

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

no
.3

3.
 

Page 40



 
  

 

15
 

 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
em

pt
 fr

om
 a

ny
 tr

af
fic

 o
rd

er
 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 
S

om
e 

lo
ca

l 
am

en
iti

es
 a

re
 s

itu
at

ed
 o

n 
ro

ad
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
lik

el
y 

to
 s

ee
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 t
ra

ffi
c 

flo
w

. 
W

he
re

 t
hi

s 
is

 t
he

 
ca

se
 t

he
 i

nc
re

as
e 

is
 e

ith
er

; 
m

in
im

al
 t

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 t
ha

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
 i

s 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
, 

or
 l

oc
al

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
 

is
 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. 
  

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

ta
ke

h
o

ld
er

s.
 

Li
st

 o
f A

bb
re

vi
at

io
ns

: 

G
C

C
 –

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

C
B

C
 –

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 

C
T

P
 –

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 

LS
T

F
 –

 L
oc

al
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
un

d 

G
H

 –
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

  
 

 
 

N
o

. 
Is

su
e 

W
h

at
 t

h
ey

 t
o

ld
 u

s 
O

u
r 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
S

u
g

g
es

ti
o

n
 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
-

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 F

or
um

. 
50

 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

C
on

ce
rn

 
ov

er
 

lo
ss

 
of

 
bl

ue
 

ba
dg

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 P
itt

vi
lle

 S
t. 

In
 

or
de

r 
th

at
 

th
e 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
 

of
 

dr
iv

in
g 

in
 

P
itt

vi
lle

 S
tr

ee
t i

s 
w

or
ka

bl
e 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
ea

bl
e 

it 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 t

o 
re

ta
in

 t
he

 b
lu

e 
ba

dg
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

in
 P

itt
vi

lle
 S

tr
ee

t. 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 i
nv

es
tig

at
ed

 
in

 
W

in
ch

co
m

be
 

S
tr

ee
t, 

T
he

 
P

ro
m

en
ad

e,
 

R
eg

en
t 

S
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ro

ad
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

la
nc

e.
 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

sp
ac

es
 

to
 

be
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

. 

 
51

 
S

af
et

y 
H

ow
 

w
ill

 
bu

se
s,

 
de

liv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

an
d 

cy
cl

is
ts

 
be

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
B

oo
ts

 
C

or
ne

r 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
de

si
gn

.  

T
hi

s 
is

 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
of

 
on

go
in

g 
de

si
gn

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
by

 o
ur

 c
ol

le
ag

ue
s 

at
 C

B
C

 w
ith

 
in

pu
t f

ro
m

 G
C

C
.  

C
le

ar
ly

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

is
 i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

m
an

ne
r 

is
 

cr
iti

ca
l 

to
 

th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 

th
e 

U
rb

an
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

sc
he

m
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 r

oa
d 

sa
fe

ty
 a

ud
its

 d
ur

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

al
so

 
ga

in
 

in
pu

t 
fr

om
 

lo
ca

l 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

gr
ou

ps
. 

Page 41



 
  

 

16
 

 

de
si

gn
. 

C
B

C
 h

av
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

a 
de

si
gn

 g
ro

up
 

w
ith

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 o
f 

th
e 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
fo

ru
m

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
w

or
ka

bl
e 

so
lu

tio
n 

is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 
 

52
 

S
af

et
y 

W
ha

t 
w

ill
 

be
 

th
e 

m
et

ho
d 

of
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

ho
w

 w
ill

 t
he

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
re

as
 

be
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

. 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

de
si

gn
 is

 a
t a

n 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

 s
o 

it 
is

 f
ar

 t
oo

 e
ar

ly
 t

o 
ad

vi
se

 o
n 

th
is

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
de

ta
il.

 
It 

is
 n

ot
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

es
e 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t 
is

su
es

 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
si

gn
 

fo
ru

m
 a

s 
de

si
gn

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ed

s.
 

T
o 

be
 

ad
vi

se
d 

w
he

n 
de

ta
ils

 
be

co
m

e 
cl

ea
r.

 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

C
5 

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

G
ro

up
 

53
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

H
ow

 
w

ill
 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

be
 

m
on

ito
re

d 
po

st
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
sc

he
m

es
 f

or
m

in
g 

th
e 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
P

la
n 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 

co
m

m
en

ce
 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ob

se
rv

at
io

n 
in

 
or

de
r 

to
 

ev
al

ua
te

 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
th

at
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

. 
A

s 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

ill
 

le
ad

 t
o 

a 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 
be

in
g 

re
-r

ou
te

d 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

an
 in

iti
al

 p
er

io
d 

of
 

tim
e 

ov
er

 
tw

o 
to

 
th

re
e 

m
on

th
s 

w
he

re
 

tr
af

fic
 l

ev
el

s 
w

ill
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
hi

gh
 l

ev
el

s 
of

 
va

ria
tio

n.
 

It 
is

 
al

so
 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 t
ra

ffi
c 

si
gn

al
s 

ju
nc

tio
n 

tim
in

gs
 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 r
es

po
nd

 t
o 

th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

T
he

re
fo

re
 

a 
si

x 
m

on
th

 
pe

rio
d 

af
te

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 t
he

 w
or

ks
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

be
fo

re
 

an
y 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
be

gi
n.

 T
he

 e
xa

ct
 t

im
in

g 
of

 
‘a

fte
r’ 

su
rv

ey
s 

w
ou

ld
 d

ep
en

d 
on

 t
he

 t
im

e 
of

 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

in
 

ne
ut

ra
l 

m
on

th
s 

fo
r 

tr
af

fic
 

su
rv

ey
s.

 
T

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 d
at

a 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ga
th

er
ed

 t
o 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e:
 

 
 

V
eh

ic
le

 fl
ow

 
 

Ju
nc

tio
n 

tu
rn

in
g 

co
un

ts
 

 
V

eh
ic

le
 s

pe
ed

 s
ur

ve
ys

 
 

Q
ue

ue
 le

ng
th

 s
ur

ve
ys

 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
as

 
su

gg
es

te
d.

 

Page 42



 
  

 

17
 

 

 
Jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

e 
su

rv
ey

s 
 

A
ir 

qu
al

ity
  

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
tr

af
fic

 d
at

a 
fu

rt
he

r 
su

rv
ey

s 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

ot
he

r 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
th

es
e 

w
ou

ld
 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
 

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

fo
ot

fa
ll 

in
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

 
A

tti
tu

di
na

l s
ur

ve
ys

 a
m

on
gs

t k
ey

 
gr

ou
ps

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e,

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

, p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 m
ob

ili
ty

 
is

su
es

, t
ax

i a
nd

 b
us

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
. 

T
he

 s
ur

ve
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
re

po
rt

 
th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ith
 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e,
 t

he
 

vi
ew

s 
of

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
gr

ou
ps

. 
T

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
th

en
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
ei

th
er

 r
et

ai
n 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

th
ei

r 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
st

at
e 

or
 

pr
op

os
e 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 T

he
re

 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 s
up

po
rt

s 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 

ou
t 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
w

or
k 

in
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
as

 t
o 

ad
dr

es
s 

an
d 

m
iti

ga
te

 
an

y 
un

fo
re

se
en

 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 a
re

as
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e.

 
S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 

– 
C

he
lt 

C
iv

ic
 

S
oc

ie
ty

. 

54
 

S
af

et
y 

W
he

th
er

 i
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

tte
r 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

al
l 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
fr

om
 

B
oo

ts
 C

or
ne

r.
 

 

A
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
B

oo
ts

 C
or

ne
r 

ar
ea

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 fu

rt
he

r 
en

ha
nc

ed
 if

 th
e 

ar
ea

 w
er

e 
en

tir
el

y 
ve

hi
cl

e 
fr

ee
. 

G
C

C
 is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 e
na

bl
in

g 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
at

 
pr

om
ot

es
 

us
e 

w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

It 
se

em
s 

cl
ea

r 
th

at
 

pr
ev

en
tin

g 
bu

se
s 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f t

he
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

is
 n

ot
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
is

 p
os

iti
on

. 
M

an
y 

of
 t

he
 s

ho
ps

 a
nd

 o
ut

le
ts

 i
n 

th
is

 a
re

a 
ne

ed
 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 

co
nt

in
ue

 
to

 
re

ce
iv

e 
de

liv
er

ie
s,

 p
re

ve
nt

in
g 

th
is

 w
ou

ld
 i

ne
vi

ta
bl

y 

In
cl

ud
e 

ex
em

pt
io

ns
 a

s 
no

 1
. 

Page 43



 
  

 

18
 

 

le
ad

 t
o 

cl
os

ur
es

 a
nd

 e
m

pt
y 

un
its

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
no

t 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

go
al

 o
f 

ec
on

om
ic

 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
 

55
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
T

he
 

im
pa

ct
 

of
 

di
sp

la
ce

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

on
 

th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

 

S
ee

 n
o.

 3
3.

 
S

ee
 n

o.
 3

3.
 

 
56

 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

In
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

tr
af

fic
 c

au
se

d 
by

 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

 

S
ee

 n
o.

 3
9.

 
S

ee
 n

o.
 3

9.
 

 
57

 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

 
al

on
g 

th
e 

S
t 

M
ar

ga
re

t’s
 R

oa
d 

co
rr

id
or

. 
 

G
C

C
 i

s 
aw

ar
e 

of
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 i
ss

ue
s 

w
ith

 t
he

 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

tr
af

fic
 

si
gn

al
s 

on
 

th
is

 
co

rr
id

or
. 

T
he

 
re

po
rt

 
in

to
 

th
e 

tr
ia

l 
he

ld
 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

12
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

 t
ha

t, 
sh

ou
ld

 
ex

te
rn

al
 

fu
nd

in
g 

be
co

m
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
a 

de
si

gn
 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 s
ig

na
lis

ed
 j

un
ct

io
ns

 
w

as
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 G
C

C
 w

ill
 f

un
d 

an
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

in
to

 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 

at
 

S
t 

G
eo

rg
es

 
S

t, 
H

en
rie

tta
 

S
t 

an
d 

M
on

so
n 

A
ve

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 o
pt

im
is

in
g 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
es

e 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 p

rio
r 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
an

y 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 
at

 B
oo

ts
 C

or
ne

r.
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 

si
gn

al
 

re
vi

ew
 

as
 

de
sc

rib
ed

. 

 
58

 
M

od
al

 S
hi

ft 
Im

po
rt

an
ce

 
of

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
so

lu
tio

n 
an

d 
w

he
th

er
 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 

st
at

io
n 

co
ul

d 
fo

rm
 

a 
m

or
e 

im
po

rt
an

t s
tr

at
eg

ic
 li

nk
. 

 

M
uc

h 
of

 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
aw

ar
de

d 
by

 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
as

 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
e 

LS
T

F
 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 

ai
m

ed
 

at
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t. 
M

ea
su

re
s 

w
ith

 
fu

nd
in

g 
th

at
 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
un

de
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 

st
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

be
tte

r 
ac

ce
ss

 
by

 
w

al
ki

ng
, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

bu
s.

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

at
 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 s

ta
tio

n 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

it 
ea

si
er

 f
or

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

ei
r 

w
ho

le
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

w
ith

 
co

nf
id

en
ce

. 

S
up

po
rt

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

w
ith

in
 

w
id

er
 

LS
T

F
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

 
59

 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

S
ho

ul
d 

Im
pe

ria
l 

S
q 

co
nv

er
t 

to
 

tw
o 

w
ay

 t
ra

ffi
c 

an
d 

O
rie

l R
oa

d 
It 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 in

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

te
rm

s 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 h

ow
ev

er
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

ef
fe

ct
s 

In
cl

ud
e 

O
rie

l 
R

oa
d 

in
to

 t
w

o-
w

ay
 

pr
op

os
al

. 

Page 44



 
  

 

19
 

 

st
ay

 a
s 

ex
is

tin
g.

 
 

co
ul

d 
be

: 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 
fr

om
 

R
eg

en
t 

S
tr

ee
t t

o 
S

ou
th

 E
as

t C
he

lte
nh

am
. 

In
cr

ea
se

 
in

 
tr

af
fic

 
on

 
Im

pe
ria

l 
S

q 
(E

as
t)

, 
M

on
tp

el
lie

r 
S

pa
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

M
on

tp
el

lie
r 

D
riv

e.
 

R
em

ov
e 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
a 

fu
tu

re
 b

us
 r

ou
te

 
fr

om
 

T
he

 
P

ro
m

en
ad

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 

to
 

th
e 

A
46

 
co

rr
id

or
. 

 
60

 
In

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

Im
po

rt
an

ce
 

of
 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

. 
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 
M

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

m
ak

e 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 e
as

ie
r 

an
d 

cl
ea

re
r 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 t

o 
on

e 
w

ay
 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

ig
ni

ng
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 

N
on

e 
R

eq
ui

re
d.

 

 
61

 
N

on
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

T
ha

t 
it 

w
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
re

-
ex

am
in

e 
th

e 
to

w
n 

si
gn

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 
an

d 
de

cl
ut

te
r 

w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

A
gr

ee
d.

 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 
in

 
si

gn
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
ig

ns
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
or

 r
em

ov
e 

re
du

nd
an

t s
ig

ns
. 

N
on

e 
R

eq
ui

re
d.

 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

H
ac

kn
ey

 
C

ar
ria

ge
 A

ss
oc

. 

62
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
T

ax
i 

dr
iv

er
s 

w
is

h 
to

 
be

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

da
yt

im
e 

bu
s 

ex
em

pt
io

n.
 

S
ee

 n
o.

 3
6.

 
S

ee
 n

o.
 3

6.
 

 
63

 
N

on
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

W
ou

ld
 l

ik
e 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
ta

xi
 b

ay
 

in
 R

eg
en

t S
t. 

P
ar

ki
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 i

n 
R

eg
en

t 
S

tr
ee

t 
ar

e 
to

 
be

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

to
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 
P

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

a 
ta

xi
 

ba
y 

w
ill

 
be

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 a

t t
he

 s
am

e 
tim

e.
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

un
de

r 
R

eg
en

t 
S

tr
ee

t 
re

vi
ew

. 

 
64

 
N

on
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

R
e-

op
en

 
O

rm
on

d 
P

la
ce

 
to

 
tr

af
fic

 o
r 

ju
st

 ta
xi

s.
 

O
rm

on
d 

P
la

ce
 w

as
 c

lo
se

d 
as

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
T

he
 P

ro
m

en
ad

e 
so

m
e 

tim
e 

ag
o.

 G
iv

en
 t

he
 

w
ay

 t
he

 a
re

a 
cu

rr
en

tly
 o

pe
ra

te
s 

(b
us

 s
to

ps
 

et
c.

) 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 

pl
an

s 
to

 
re

ve
rs

e 
th

is
 

cl
os

ur
e.

 

N
on

e 
R

eq
ui

re
d.

 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

 
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
. 

65
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
R

eq
ui

re
 s

am
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 

to
 

th
at

 
m

ad
e 

fo
r 

ha
ck

ne
y 

ca
rr

ia
ge

s.
 

A
t 

pr
es

en
t t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l i

s 
to

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
 

ex
em

pt
io

n 
fo

r 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 
of

 
dr

iv
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

la
re

nc
e 

S
tr

ee
t/P

itt
vi

lle
 

S
tr

ee
t f

or
 h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
s.

 
It 

is
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 t
o 

ex
em

pt
 p

riv
at

e 
hi

re
 ta

xi
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

as
on

s:
 

T
he

re
 

ar
e 

a 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
in

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 a

nd
 t

he
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ar
ea

 w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 

P
ro

hi
bi

t 
pr

iv
at

e 
hi

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 p

ro
po

se
d.

 

Page 45



 
  

 

20
 

 

be
 in

 k
ee

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
ar

ea
. 

P
re

vi
ou

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 t

ra
ffi

c 
or

de
r 

ca
m

er
a 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

el
se

w
he

re
 

su
gg

es
ts

 
th

at
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
a 

re
co

rd
 

of
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
pr

iv
at

e 
hi

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

qu
ic

kl
y 

be
co

m
es

 u
nw

or
ka

bl
e.

 
 

66
 

N
on

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
C

la
rit

y 
of

 
th

e 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
ta

xi
 

ra
nk

s 
an

d 
pi

ck
 u

p/
se

t d
ow

n 
ba

ys
. 

T
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
te

am
 

is
 

un
su

re
 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 b

ay
s 

la
ck

 c
la

rit
y.

 C
on

ta
ct

 t
o 

be
 

m
ad

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

B
C

 l
ic

en
si

ng
 t

ea
m

 t
o 

in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

if 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 

is
su

es
 

ca
n 

be
 

re
so

lv
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

R
eq

ue
st

 C
B

C
 l

ic
en

si
ng

 t
ea

m
 t

o 
co

nt
ac

t 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n 

. 

 
67

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
si

gn
in

g 
ro

ut
es

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
. 

A
s 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

de
sc

rib
ed

 
a 

re
vi

ew
 

of
 

th
e 

si
gn

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

is
 t

o 
be

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

. 

R
ev

ie
w

 s
ig

ni
ng

. 

 
68

 
N

on
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

R
eq

ue
st

 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

si
ng

le
 

ye
llo

w
 l

in
e 

in
 t

he
 M

on
tp

el
lie

r 
W

al
k 

ar
ea

. 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

 t
ra

ffi
c 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
or

de
rs

 i
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 t

he
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

, 
ho

w
ev

er
 

co
nt

ac
t 

w
ill

 
be

 
m

ad
e 

w
ith

 
pa

rt
ne

rin
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

to
 

ad
vi

se
 

of
 

th
is

 
re

qu
es

t. 

R
eq

ue
st

 t
o 

be
 s

en
t 

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

au
th

or
ity

. 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

T
he

 
P

la
yh

ou
se

 
T

he
at

re
. 

69
 

In
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

lo
ad

in
g 

ar
ea

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

to
 

th
e 

O
rie

l 
R

d 
en

tr
an

ce
, 

si
m

ila
r 

to
 

th
at

 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

T
he

 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
de

si
gn

 
di

sc
us

se
d 

at
 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
m

ee
tin

g 
is

 u
nd

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 

an
d 

w
ill

 
be

 
am

en
de

d 
to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e.

 
F

ur
th

er
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 P

la
yh

ou
se

 is
 p

la
nn

ed
.  

A
m

en
d 

de
si

gn
. 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

B
en

ce
 

B
ui

ld
er

s 
M

er
ch

an
ts

. 

70
 

S
af

et
y 

C
on

ce
rn

s 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
to

 
re

ve
rs

e 
th

e 
on

e-
w

ay
 

sy
st

em
 

in
 

th
e 

N
or

th
 

en
d 

of
 

S
he

rb
ou

rn
e 

P
la

ce
. 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
of

 
B

en
ce

 
B

ui
ld

er
s 

M
er

ch
an

ts
 t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
m

en
de

d 
to

 
re

ta
in

 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

in
 

S
he

rb
ou

rn
e 

S
tr

ee
t a

s 
ex

is
tin

g.
 

S
he

rb
ou

rn
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

to
 r

em
ai

n 
as

 
ex

is
tin

g.
 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

. 
71

 
S

af
et

y 
If 

T
R

O
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

is
 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
ns

id
er

 v
ia

 c
am

er
as

 
ra

th
er

 t
ha

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 m

ea
ns

 t
o 

bl
oc

k 
th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
. 

T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
fo

r 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
is

 v
ia

 
A

ut
om

at
ic

 
N

um
be

r 
P

la
te

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
(A

N
P

R
) 

ca
m

er
as

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 
(r

is
in

g 
bo

lla
rd

 
et

c.
) 

du
e 

to
 

di
ffi

cu
lty

 
m

an
ag

in
g 

ex
em

pt
io

ns
. 

P
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
fo

r 
A

N
P

R
 

ca
m

er
as

. 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 

C
ha

m
be

r 
of

 
C

om
m

er
ce

.  

72
 

G
en

er
al

  
S

up
po

rt
 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

in
 

pr
in

ci
pl

e.
 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

em
en

t 
th

at
 c

ur
re

nt
 

si
tu

at
io

n 
is

 
no

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
an

d 
m

us
t 

ad
dr

es
s 

cu
rr

en
t 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
C

ha
m

be
r 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

pr
op

os
al

s 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ha

m
be

r 
ha

s 
re

qu
es

te
d 

ce
rt

ai
n 

el
em

en
ts

 
ar

e 
al

so
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

.  

C
on

tin
ue

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

re
qu

es
ts

 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

am
en

dm
en

ts
.  

Page 46



 
  

 

21
 

 

tr
af

fic
 p

ro
bl

em
s.

 
S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 

- 
E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
  

73
 

G
en

er
al

 
T

ha
nk

 
yo

u 
fo

r 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

us
 

on
 t

he
 d

ra
ft 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
pl

an
 f

or
 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

.  
E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 

w
el

co
m

es
 

th
is

 
po

si
tiv

e 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

es
 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 
in

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
re

al
m

 
w

hi
ch

 
if 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 
de

si
gn

ed
 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 
w

ill
 

ha
ve

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
to

w
ns

 
hi

st
or

ic
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

se
tti

ng
 

of
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
la

nd
m

ar
k 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
in

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

. 
W

e 
w

ou
ld

 
en

do
rs

e 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

of
 ‘

le
ss

 i
s 

m
or

e’
 a

nd
 

th
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
in

 
M

an
ua

l 
fo

r 
S

tr
ee

ts
 

(I
&

II)
 

an
d 

S
tr

ee
ts

 
fo

r 
A

ll.
 

Li
m

iti
ng

 
ro

ad
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

(p
ai

nt
ed

 s
ig

ns
 

on
 t

ar
m

ac
);

 a
vo

id
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
gu

ar
dr

ai
ls

 
an

d 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

in
tr

us
iv

e 
si

gn
s 

ar
e 

al
l 

to
 

be
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
de

si
gn

 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 w
he

re
ve

r 
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

.  

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 s

up
po

rt
. 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

S
up

er
gr

ou
p 

(S
up

er
dr

y,
 

C
la

re
nc

e 
S

t)
 

74
 

G
en

er
al

 
C

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

“t
ha

t 
su

pe
rg

ro
up

 
is

 e
xt

re
m

el
y 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 t
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

la
ns

 to
 u

pg
ra

de
 th

e 
st

re
et

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
re

-d
ire

ct
 

tr
af

fic
 o

pp
os

ite
 o

ur
 s

to
re

”.
 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
su

pp
or

t. 
A

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

su
pp

or
t. 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 a

nd
 

T
ew

ke
sb

ur
y 

C
yc

le
 C

am
pa

ig
n 

75
 

M
od

al
 S

hi
ft 

W
el

co
m

es
 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

W
ou

ld
 

lik
e 

to
 

se
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

in
 p

er
m

ea
bi

lit
y 

– 
pe

rm
it 

2 -
w

ay
 

cy
cl

in
g 

in
 

on
e 

w
ay

 r
oa

ds
. 

F
ur

th
er

 
al

te
ra

tio
ns

 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
cy

cl
e 

pe
rm

ea
bi

lit
y 

pr
op

os
ed

. S
ee

 n
ot

e 
20

. 
S

ee
 n

o 
20

.  

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
- 

76
 

G
en

er
al

 
B

ro
ad

 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
sc

he
m

e,
 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
su

pp
or

t. 
A

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

su
pp

or
t. 

Page 47



 
  

 

22
 

 S
ta

ge
co

ac
h 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
is

su
es

 
w

ith
 

“o
bs

es
si

on
 

w
ith

 
pu

bl
ic

 
re

al
m

 
at

 t
he

 e
xp

en
se

 o
f 

pr
ac

tic
al

iti
es

 
an

d 
pr

ag
m

at
is

m
”.

 
S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 

– 
R

eg
en

t A
rc

ad
e 

77
 

G
en

er
al

 
“F

ul
ly

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s”
 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
su

pp
or

t. 
A

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

su
pp

or
t. 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
– 

M
ar

tin
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
P

ro
p.

B
re

w
er

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t. 

78
 

G
en

er
al

 
W

rit
in

g 
on

 
be

ha
lf 

of
 

th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 

an
d 

te
na

nt
s.

.to
 

ex
pr

es
s 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

P
la

n 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
su

pp
or

t. 
 

 

Page 48



 

 
 

 
$a

lf1
mj

tf.d
oc

 
Pa

ge
 1 

of 
1 

La
st 

up
da

ted
 06

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

3 
 

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3  

 
Th

e r
isk

 
Or

igi
na

l ri
sk
 sc

or
e 

(im
pa

ct 
x l

ike
lih

oo
d) 

Ma
na

gin
g r

isk
 

Ri
sk
 

ref
. 

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n 

Ri
sk
 

Ow
ne

r 
Da

te 
rai

se
d 

Im
pa

ct 
1-5

 
Lik

eli
- 

ho
od

 
1-6

 
Sc

or
e 

Co
ntr

ol 
Ac

tio
n 

De
ad

lin
e 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
off

ice
r 

Tr
an

sfe
rre

d t
o 

ris
k r

eg
ist

er 

 
If t

he
 C
ou

nc
il c

on
sid

ers
 

the
 re

po
rt w

ith
ou

t 
rec

og
nis

ing
 co

nc
ern

s o
f 

the
 se

pa
rat

e p
eti
tio
n, 

an
y 

res
ult
an

t d
ec
isio

n m
ay
 no

t 
be

 fu
lly 

inf
orm

ed
 an

d i
s 

like
ly 
to 

be
 un

so
un

d 

Mi
ke
 

Re
dm

an
 
01

/11
/13

 
4 

4 
16

 
Re

du
ce
 
Co

ns
ide

r re
po
rt a

nd
 

pe
titi
on

 at
 sa

me
 

me
eti
ng

 an
d e

ns
ure

 
co
nc
ern

s a
re 

ref
lec

ted
 

in 
de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing

 
pro

ce
ss
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pla

na
tor

y n
ote

s 
Im

pa
ct 

– a
n a

ss
es
sm

en
t o
f th

e i
mp

ac
t if
 th

e r
isk

 oc
cu
rs 

on
 a 

sc
ale

 of
 1-

5 (
1 b

ein
g l
ea

st 
im
pa

ct 
an

d 5
 be

ing
 m

ajo
r o

r c
riti
ca
l) 

Lik
eli

ho
od

 – 
ho

w 
like

ly 
is 
it t
ha

t th
e r

isk
 w
ill o

cc
ur 

on
 a 

sc
ale

 of
 1-

6  
(1 

be
ing

 al
mo

st 
im
po

ss
ibl
e, 

2 i
s v

ery
 lo
w,
 3 

is 
low

, 4
 si
gn

ific
an

t,  
5 h

igh
 an

d 6
 a 

ve
ry 

hig
h p

rob
ab

ility
) 

Co
ntr

ol 
- E

ith
er:

 R
ed

uc
e /
 Ac

ce
pt 

/ T
ran

sfe
r to

 3r
d p

art
y /
 C
los

e 
  

   
 

Page 49



Page 50
This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15
Page 51By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 60
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the last meeting
	9 Petition received on the Cheltenham Transport Plan
	10 Cheltenham Transport Plan-consultation report
	2013_11_18_COU_Appendix 2 CTP suggestion-comment
	2013_11_18_COU_CTP_GCC_Consultation_Appendix_3_risk

	15 EXEMPT MINUTES

